
 

 
Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and online at www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are 
rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in our video archive at 
www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474 or TDD at 701.241.8258. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to 
make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

FARGO PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, March 6, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. 

 
 
A: Approve Order of Agenda 
 
B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of February 6, 2018 
 
C: Brown Bag Luncheon - Wednesday, March 21, 2018 
 
D: Public Hearing Items: 
 
1. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of MVM Addition (Minor Subdivision) a 

replat of Lot 1, Block 5, Southwood Park Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North 
Dakota.  (Located at 3502 36th Street South) (J&J Investments/Brendan Muldoon) (dk)  

 
2. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Cityscapes Business Park Addition 

(Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lots 1-4, Block 28, all of Blocks 29-30 of Tyler’s Addition, and all 
of vacated 20th and 21st Streets North lying between said blocks, and a portion of the 
Southwest Quarter, Section 1, Township 139 North, Range 49 West of the 5th Principal Meridian 
to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota, to include a subdivision waiver for drain 
setback on Lot 1, Block 1 of the proposed plat. (Located at 1910, 1968, and 2068 1st Avenue 
North) (Bullinger Enterprises/Rick Flacksbarth) (dk): CONTINUED TO APRIL 3, 2018 

 
3a. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling 

Residential to MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay 
within the boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow Crest Addition. (Located at 5601 34th 
Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk): WITHDRAWN  

 
3b. Continued hearing on an application requesting a PUD, Planned Unit Development Master Land 

Use Plan within the boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow Crest Addition. (Located at 
5601 34th Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk): WITHDRAWN 

 
3c. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Villas at Shadow Crest Addition 

(Major Subdivision), including a subdivision waiver for reduced right of way width, a replat of Lot 
1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 
5601 34th Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk): WITHDRAWN 

 
4a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential to 

MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay within the 
boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow Crest Addition. (Located at 5601 34th Avenue 
South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk) 

 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


 

 
Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and online at www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are 
rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in our video archive at 
www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474 or TDD at 701.241.8258. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to 
make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

4b. Hearing on an application requesting a PUD, Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan 
within the boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow Crest Addition. (Located at 5601 34th 
Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk) 

 
4c. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Villas at Shadow Crest Addition (Major 

Subdivision), including a Subdivision Waiver for reduced street right of way width and for 
sidewalks with an Alternative Access Plan, a replat of Lot 1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition to the 
City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 5601 34th Avenue South) (Jon 
Youness/Eagle Ridge Development) (dk) 

 
5a. Hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment on Lots 4-9, Block 14, 

Kirkham’s Second Addition. (Located at 1114, 1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, and 1136 14th Street 
North) (Jay Alsop, APM/Chris Hawley Architects) (an) 

 
5b. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential 

and MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential, to LC, Limited Commercial with a PUD, Planned Unit 
Development Overlay on Lots 4-9, Block 14, Kirkham’s Second Addition. (Located at 1114, 
1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, and 1136 14th Street North) (Jay Alsop, APM/Chris Hawley Architects) 
(an) 

 
5c. Hearing on an application requesting a PUD, Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan 

for Lots 4-9, Block 14, Kirkham’s Second Addition. (Located at 1114, 1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, 
and 1136 14th Street North) (Jay Alsop, APM/Chris Hawley Architects) (an) 

 
6a. Hearing on an application requesting a CUP, Conditional Use Permit, to allow household living in 

a LC, Limited Commercial, zoning district on a portion of Lot 4, Block 1, Urban Plains 
Northeast Retail Addition. (Located at 2720, 2740, 2760, and 2780 47th Street South and 
4680 28th Avenue South) (Urban Plains Land Co., LLC/Clay Dietrich) (kb) 

 
6b. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition 

(Minor Subdivision) on a portion of Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, Urban Pains Northeast Retail Addition 
to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 2720, 2740, 2760, and 2780 47th 
Street South and 4680 28th Avenue South) (Urban Plains Land Co., LLC/Clay Dietrich) (kb) 

 
7. Hearing on an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit for warehouse, wholesale sales, 

manufacturing and production, and industrial services in the GC, General Commercial on Lots 1 
and 2, Block 1, Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition.  (Located at 5301 and 5353 51st Avenue 
South) (FLO, LLC/Don Dabbert Jr.) (me)  

 
8. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of The Basins on 100th Addition (Minor 

Subdivision) a replat of Lot 6, Block 1, Commerce on I29 Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass 
County, North Dakota. (Located at 4000 98th Avenue South) (RI Properties, LLC) (dk) 

 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


 

 
Planning Commission meetings are broadcast live on cable channel TV Fargo 56 and online at www.FargoND.gov/streaming. They are 
rebroadcast each Wednesday at 8:00 a.m. and Sunday at 8:00 a.m.; and are also included in our video archive at 
www.FargoND.gov/PlanningCommission.  
 
People with disabilities who plan to attend the meeting and need special accommodations should contact the Planning Office  
at 701.241.1474 or TDD at 701.241.8258. Please contact us at least 48 hours before the meeting to give our staff adequate time to 
make arrangements. 
 
Minutes are available on the City of Fargo Web site at www.FargoND.gov/planningcommission. 

9. Hearing on an application requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow for an Alternative Access 
Plan on an unplatted portion of the Northeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 139 North, 
Range 49 West. (Located at 1345 Main Avenue) (International Market Plaza, LLC/Fowzia Adde) 
(bv): WITHDRAWN 

 
 
 
 

http://www.fargond.gov/streaming
http://www.fargond.gov/PlanningCommission
http://www.fargond.gov/planningcommission


 BOARD OF PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, February 6, 2018 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Planning Commissioners of the City of Fargo, 
North Dakota, was held in the City Commission Room at City Hall at 3:00 o'clock p.m., 
Tuesday, February 6, 2018. 
 
The Planning Commissioners present or absent were as follows: 
 
Present: Shara Fischer, John Gunkelman, Mike Magelky, Dawn Morgan, Mary 

Scherling, Rocky Schneider, Kelly Steffes, Scott Stofferahn 
 
Absent: Maranda Tasa, Melissa Sobolik 
 
Chair Fischer called the meeting to order. 
 
Business Items: 
Item A: Approve Order of Agenda 
Chair Fischer noted the following Agenda items: 
 - Items 1a, 1b, 1c, and 1d are continued to the May 1, 2018 Planning 

Commission meeting. 
 - Items 2, 4a, and 4b are continued to the April 3, 2018 Planning Commission 

meeting. 
 - Items 5, 8a, 8b, and 8c are continued to the March 6, 2018 Planning 

Commission meeting. 
 
Member Gunkelman moved the Order of Agenda be approved as presented.  Second 
by Member Schneider.  All Members present voted aye and the motion was declared 
carried. 
 
Item B: Minutes:  Regular Meeting of January 4, 2018 
Member Steffes moved the minutes of the January 4, 2018 Planning Commission 
meeting be approved.  Second by Member Stofferahn.  All Members present voted aye 
and the motion was declared carried. 
 
Item C: February 21, 2018 Brown Bag Luncheon  

Topic:  Case Status reports 
 
Item D: Public Hearing Items: 
 
Item 1: NSC Addition  
1a. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Growth Plan Amendment 
within a portion of the boundaries of the proposed NSC Addition.  (Located at 



Planning Commission 
February 6, 2018  Page No. 2 
 
6101 45th Street North) (City of Fargo/Fargo Park District): CONTINUED TO MAY 
1, 2018 
 
1b. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from AG, 
Agricultural to P/I, Public and Institutional within a portion of the boundaries of 
the proposed NSC Addition.  (Located at 6101 45th Street North) (City of 
Fargo/Fargo Park District): CONTINUED TO MAY 1, 2018 
 
1c. Continued hearing on an application requesting an Institutional Master 
Plan within a portion of the boundaries of the proposed NSC Addition.  (Located 
at 6101 45th Street North) (City of Fargo/Fargo Park District): CONTINUED TO 
MAY 1, 2018 
 
1d. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of NSC Addition 
(Major Subdivision) on an unplatted portion of land in the Northwest Quarter and 
the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 140 
North, Range 49 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Fargo, Cass County, 
North Dakota.  (Located at 5703 and 6101 45th Street North) (City of Fargo/Fargo 
Park District): CONTINUED TO MAY 1, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for August 1, 2017. At the August 1, 2017 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to September 5, 2017. At the September 5, 2017 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to October 3, 2017. At the October 3, 2017 meeting, the Hearing was 
continued to December 5, 2017. At the December 5, 2017 meeting, the Hearing was 
continued to January 4, 2018. At the January 4, 2018 meeting, the Hearing was 
continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this item be 
continued to May 1, 2018. 
 
Item 2: Craigs Oak Grove Addition 
Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Craigs Oak Grove 
Addition (Major Subdivision), a vacation plat of 5th Avenue North, and an alley, 
and a replat of part of Block 27, part of Block 28, and the vacated portions of Elm 
Street, Block 28 alley and 5th Avenue North, Keeney and Devitts 2nd Addition to 
the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 43, 44, and 48 5th 
Avenue North, 10, 14, and 22 6th Avenue North, and 505, 509, 515, and 519 Oak 
Street North) (Jesse Craig): CONTINUED TO APRIL 3, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for November 7, 2017. At the November 7, 2017 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to December 5, 2017. At the December 5, 2017 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to January 4, 2018. At the January 4, 2018 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this item be 
continued to April 3, 2018. 
 
Item 3: Cityscapes Business Park Addition 
Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Cityscapes Business 
Park Addition (Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lots 1-4, Block 28, all of Blocks 29-
30 of Tyler’s Addition, and all of vacated 20th and 21st Streets North lying 
between said blocks, and a portion of the Southwest Quarter, Section 1, 



Planning Commission 
February 6, 2018  Page No. 3 
 
Township 139 North, Range 49 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Fargo, 
Cass County, North Dakota, to include a subdivision waiver for drain setback on 
Lot 1, Block 1 of the proposed plat. (Located at 1910, 1968, and 2068 1st Avenue 
North) (Bullinger Enterprises/Rick Flacksbarth): CONTINUED TO MARCH 6, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for November 7, 2017. At the November 7, 2017 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to December 5, 2017. At the December 5, 2017 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to January 4, 2018. At the January 4, 2018 meeting, the Hearing 
was continued to this date and time. 
 
Planning Director Nicole Crutchfield presented the staff report stating that the approval 
criteria have not been met and staff is recommending denial of the application. 
 
Member Morgan present. 
 
Division Engineer Brenda Derrig spoke on behalf of the Engineering Department. 
 
Applicant Rick Flacksbarth, Cityscapes Development, spoke on behalf of the 
application.  
 
Discussion was held on the history of the property and the buried drain, the purpose 
and necessity of the City’s minimum requested easement, and the pending legal issues 
on the property. 
 
Mr. Flacksbarth distributed a handout to the Board of the drain easements along the line 
of the drain above and below the property.  
 
Member Schneider moved to continue this item to the March 6, 2018 Planning 
Commission meeting.  Second by Member Stofferahn.  On call of the roll Members 
Schneider, Stofferahn, Scherling, Steffes, Magelky, Gunkelman, Morgan, and Fischer 
voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Sobolik and Tasa. The motion was 
declared carried. 
 
Item 4: Madelyn’s Meadows Addition 
4a. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from AG, 
Agricultural to SR-4, Single-Dwelling Residential, within the boundaries of the 
proposed Madelyn’s Meadows Addition. (Located at 7269 25th Street South) 
(Sitka Investments, LLC/Jon Youness): CONTINUED TO APRIL 3, 2018 
 
4b. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Madelyn’s 
Meadows Addition (Major Subdivision) a replat of a portion of the Northeast 1/4 of 
the Southeast 1/4 of Section 11, T138N, R49W, Cass County, North Dakota.  
(Located at 7269 25th Street South) (Sitka Investments, LLC/Jon Youness): 
CONTINUED TO APRIL 3, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for December 5, 2017. At the December 5, 2017 meeting, the 
hearing was continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this 
item be continued to April 3, 2018. 



Planning Commission 
February 6, 2018  Page No. 4 
 
 
Item 5: MVM Addition 
Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of MVM Addition (Minor 
Subdivision) a replat of Lot 1, Block 5, Southwood Park Addition, to the City of 
Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota.  (Located at 3502 36th Street South) (J&J 
Investments/Brendan Muldoon): CONTINUED TO MARCH 6, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for January 4, 2018. At the January 4, 2018 meeting, the 
Hearing was continued to this date and time; however, the applicant has requested this 
item be continued to March 6, 2018. 
 
Item 6: Simonson First Addition 
6a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change to repeal and 
reestablish a C-O, Conditional Overlay within the boundaries of the proposed 
Simonson First Addition. (Located at 3825 53rd Avenue South) (Arch 
Simonson/Lowry Engineering): APPROVED 
 
6b. Continued hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Simonson First 
Addition (Minor Subdivision) a replat of Lot 2, Block 1, The District of Fargo 
Addition, to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 3825 53rd 
Avenue South) (Arch Simonson/Lowry Engineering): APPROVED 
A Hearing had been set on Item 6b. for January 4, 2018. At the January 4, 2018 
meeting, the Hearing was continued to this date and time. 
 
Assistant Planner Barrett Voigt presented the staff report stating all approval criteria 
have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Member Stofferahn moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed: 1) Zoning Change 
to repeal and re-establish a C-O, Conditional Overlay on Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, of the 
proposed Simonson First Addition subdivision plat, and 2) Subdivision Plat, Simonson 
First Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the 
adopted Area Plan, the GO2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, the Standards of Section 
20-0906.F (1-4), the Standards of Article 20-06, and all other applicable requirements of 
the Land Development Code.  Second by Member Gunkelman.  On call of the roll 
Members Steffes, Magelky, Gunkelman, Scherling, Morgan, Stofferahn, Schneider, and 
Fischer voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Sobolik and Tasa. The motion was 
declared carried. 
 
Item 7: PTP Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change to repeal and re-establish 
a C-O, Conditional Overlay on Lot 1, Block 1, PTP Addition. (Located at 2856 
Brandt Drive South) (David Schultz): APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Maegin Elshaug presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Applicant David Schultz spoke on behalf of the application.  



Planning Commission 
February 6, 2018  Page No. 5 
 
 
Member Gunkelman moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed Zoning Change to 
repeal and re-establish a C-O, Conditional Overlay, as the proposal complies with the 
Adopted Area Plan, the Standards of Article 20-0906.F (1-4), and all other applicable 
requirements of the Land Development Code.  Second by Member Morgan.  On call of 
the roll Members Gunkelman, Steffes, Magelky, Morgan, Stofferahn, Schneider, 
Scherling and Fischer voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Sobolik and Tasa. 
The motion was declared carried. 
 
Item 8: Villas as Shadow Crest Addition 
8a. Hearing on an application requesting a Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-
Dwelling Residential to MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with a PUD, Planned Unit 
Development Overlay within the boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow 
Crest Addition. (Located at 5601 34th Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge 
Development): CONTINUED TO MARCH 6, 2018 
 
8b. Hearing on an application requesting a PUD, Planned Unit Development 
Master Land Use Plan within the boundaries of the proposed Villas at Shadow 
Crest Addition. (Located at 5601 34th Avenue South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge 
Development): CONTINUED TO MARCH 6, 2018 
 
8c. Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Villas at Shadow Crest 
Addition (Major Subdivision) a replat of Lot 1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition to 
the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 5601 34th Avenue 
South) (Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge Development): CONTINUED TO MARCH 6, 2018 
A Hearing had been set for this date and time; however, the applicant has requested 
this item be continued to March 6, 2018. 
 
Item 9: Collins Fourth Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of Collins Fourth Addition (Minor 
Subdivision) a replat of part of Lot 2, Block 1, Collins Third Subdivision to the 
City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota and vacated portions of 36th Avenue 
South and 39th Street South. (Located at 3949 37th Avenue South and 3600 39th 
Street South) (Larkin Properties LLP/Houston Engineering, Inc.): APPROVED 
Planning Coordinator Aaron Nelson presented the staff report stating all approval 
criteria have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Member Magelky moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed subdivision plat, 
Collins Fourth Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with 
the Adopted Area Plan, the Standards of Article 20-06, and all other applicable 
requirements of the Land Development Code.  Second by Member Steffes.  On call of 
the roll Members Morgan, Magelky, Steffes, Gunkelman, Scherling, Schneider, 
Stofferahn, and Fischer voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Sobolik and Tasa. 
The motion was declared carried. 



Planning Commission 
February 6, 2018  Page No. 6 
 
 
Item 10: The Edge Addition 
Hearing on an application requesting a Plat of The Edge Addition (Minor 
Subdivision) a replat of Lots 1-9 and 19-24, Block 6 and a portion of a vacated 
alley in said Block 6, and a portion of vacated 6th Avenue North in Reeves 
Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. (Located at 1321 5th 
Avenue North and 502 University Drive North) (DFI A, LLC/Erin Anderson - 
Commonwealth Development Corporation): APPROVED 
Assistant Planner Kylie Bagley presented the staff report stating all approval criteria 
have been met and staff is recommending approval. 
 
Member Stofferahn moved the findings and recommendations of staff be accepted and 
approval be recommended to the City Commission of the proposed subdivision plat, 
The Edge Addition as outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the 
Standards of Article 20-06, and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  Second by Member Gunkelman.  On call of the roll Members 
Scherling, Morgan, Stofferahn, Steffes, Schneider, Gunkelman, Magelky, and Fischer 
voted aye. Absent and not voting: Members Sobolik and Tasa. The motion was 
declared carried. 
 
Item E: Other Items: 
 
The time at adjournment was 4:00 p.m. 
 



4

5

6

7

8

1

I94

I29

U
N
IV
ER
SI
TY

D
R
S

13

AVE S

45 ST S

32

AVES

52 AVE S

U
N
IVER

SITY

D
R
N

19 AVE N

10 ST
 S

10
 S
T 
N

45 ST N

VETER
AN
S BLVD

F 0 2 41
Miles

Agenda Items Map
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Agenda Items Number
1   - MVM Addition
4   - Villas at Shadow Crest Addition
5   - Kirkham's Second Addition
6   - Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition
7   - Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition
8   - The Basins on 100th Addition



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Agenda Item # 1 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: MVM Addition  Date: 
Update: 

 
12/27/2017 
3/1/2018 
 

Location: 3502 36th Street South Staff Contact: Donald Kress, senior 
planner 

Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 5 of Replat of Lots 6-17, Block 1; Lots 13 & 14, Block 3; Lots 1-6, 
Block 4 of Southwood Park 

Owner(s)/Applicant: 
Bob Hegg—J&J Investments 
/ Brendan Muldoon—PRG 
Commercial Real Estate 

Engineer: Moore Engineering 

Entitlements 
Requested: 

Minor Plat (replat of Lot 1, Block 5, of Replat of Lots 6-17, Block 1; Lots 13 & 
14, Block 3; Lots 1-6, Block 4 of Southwood Park Addition)  

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 6, 2018 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Light manufacturing and vacant  Land Use: Light manufacturing (proposed Lot 1); 

parking lot (proposed Lot 2) 
Zoning: LI, Limited Industrial   Zoning: No change  
Uses Allowed: LI – Limited Industrial.  Allows 
colleges, community service, daycare centers of 
unlimited size, detention facilities, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, adult entertainment 
centers, offices, off-premise advertising, 
commercial parking, outdoor recreation and 
entertainment, retail sales and service, self 
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
industrial service, manufacturing and production, 
warehouse and freight movement, wholesale 
sales, aviation, surface transportation. 
 
 

 Uses Allowed: No change 

Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: 85%  Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed:  No change 
 
Proposal: 
PROJECT HISTORY NOTE:  This project is continued from the January 4 and February 6, 2018, 
Planning Commission meetings.  
 
The applicant requests approval of one entitlement: 

1. A plat of the MVM Addition,  a replat of Lot 1, Block 5 of Replat of Lots 6-17, Block 1; Lots 13 & 
14, Block 3; Lots 1-6, Block 4 of Southwood Park, to create two lots for commercial development. 

          
The subject property is located at 3502 36th Avenue South. The applicant intends to create two lots. Lot 1 
lot will contain the existing commercial building. Lot 2 will have no development on it.  It is intended to be 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

sold to the adjacent property owner to the east as an additional parking lot. The Engineering Department 
has advised the applicant that, for storm water purposes, the subject parcel (Lot 2 of the MVM Addition) 
along with the parcel it is developed with, will be looked at as a “common development”; that is, the two 
adjacent parcels will be considered as one for the purposes of storm water management.  Should a 
parking lot be constructed on the subject parcel, Engineering will want the owner to capture all the storm 
water from the new construction, and as much as possible from the existing built-up area, for detention 
and water quality treatment purposes.  Engineering is NOT requiring the existing pavements be removed 
and replaced for this. 
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

 North:  Auto repair shop with LI zoning 
 East:  Manufacturing with LI zoning 
 South: Retail use (Fleet Farm) with GC, General Commercial zoning  
 West: Interstate Highway 29 right of way—ND Department of Transportation 

 
Area Plans:  
No area plans apply. 
    
Schools and Parks:  
Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo School District and is served by Centennial 
Elementary, Discovery Middle, and Davies High schools. 
 
Neighborhood:  The subject property is located in the Stonebridge Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Stonebridge Park #2 (3520 32nd Street S) is located less than 700 feet east of the subject 
property and provides basketball, multipurpose field, playground, recreational trails, and disc golf  
amenities.    
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: There is an off-road bike facility located along 35th Avenue South that is a 
component of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria are met before a minor plat can be approved: 

1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend approval or 
denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  Section 20-
0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it 
is located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development and complies with the adopted 
Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  
This project site is not within an area plan. The zoning for the project site is LI, Limited Industrial. 
This zoning will accommodate the proposed limited industrial development.  In accordance with 
Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property 
owners within 300 feet of the subject property. No comments have been received. The project 
has been reviewed by the city’s Planning, Engineering, Public Works, Inspections, and Fire 
Departments and found to meet the standards of Article 20-06 and other applicable requirements 
of the Land Development Code. (Criteria Satisfied) 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
2. Section 20-0907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board 

of City Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public 
improvements to serve the subdivision.  
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it 
is important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and 
proposed) are subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of 
the public infrastructure improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and 
storm sewer by the square footage basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment 
principles. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend 
approval to the City Commission of the proposed plat of the MVM Addition, as the proposal complies 
with the Go2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, Standards of Article 20-06 of the LDC and all other 
applicable requirements of the LDC.” 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
 
 
 

 



Subject Property

35 1/2
COURT
AVE S

35 AVE S

37 AVE S

36 AVE S
I29

36 S
T S

33 S
T S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

January 4, 2018

Plat (Minor)
MVM Addition

300
Feet

3502 36th Street South

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMU
GC
GO

LC

MR-2
MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

35 1/2
COURT
AVE S

35 AVE S

37 AVE S

36 AVE S
I29

36 S
T S

33 S
T S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

January 4, 2018

Plat (Minor)
MVM Addition

300
Feet

3502 36th Street South



DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

Scale in Feet

0 50



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

Agenda Item # 4a, 4b, 4c 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Villas at Shadow Crest 
Addition Date: 2/28/2018 

Location: 5601 34th Avenue  South Staff Contact: Donald Kress, planning 
coordinator 

Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: 
 
Jon Youness/Eagle Ridge 
Development 

Engineer: Bolton & Menk 

Entitlements 
Requested: 

Major Subdivision (a replat of Lot 1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition to the 
City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota including a Subdivision Waiver for 
reduced street right of way width and for sidewalks with an Alternative 
Sidewalk Plan); Zoning Change (From MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential to 
MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with a PUD, Planned Unit Development 
Overlay) and a PUD Master Land Use Plan 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing:  March 6, 2018 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Undeveloped  Land Use: Residential  
Zoning: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential   Zoning: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with 

Planned Unit Development 
Uses Allowed: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling allows 
detached houses, attached houses, duplexes, 
multi-dwelling structures, daycare centers up to 
12 children or adults, group living, parks and 
open space, religious institutions, safety 
services, schools, and basic utilities.  

 Uses Allowed: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling allows 
detached houses, attached houses, duplexes, multi-
dwelling structures, daycare centers up to 12 
children or adults, group living, parks and open 
space, religious institutions, safety services, 
schools, and basic utilities. 

Maximum Density Allowed (Residential):   
MR-3 Allows 24 dwelling units per acre 

 Maximum Density Allowed: MR-3 Allows 24 
dwelling units per acre 

 
Proposal: 
PROJECT HISTORY NOTE:  The Planning Commission agenda for the March 6, 2018 Planning 
Commission meeting notes agenda items 3a, 3b, and 3c, a plat, zone change, and PUD master land use 
plan for Villas at Shadowcrest, as being withdrawn.  This is an earlier version of this project.  As the 
applicant has changed the street configuration and increased the number of lots, the current project is 
agenda items 4a, 4b, and 4c. 
 
The applicant requests three entitlements: 

1. A major subdivision, entitled Villas at Shadow Crest Addition, a three block, 22 lot subdivision, 
which is a plat of a portion of the Lot 1, Block 2, Schatz Third Addition, City of Fargo, Cass 
County, North Dakota. The plat includes Subdivision Waiver for reduced street right of way width 
and for sidewalks with an Alternative Sidewalk Plan 

2. A zoning change from MR-3, Multi Dwelling Residential to MR-3 with a PUD, Planned Unit 
Development 

3. A Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay and master land use plan 
 

This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 



 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 
 North: Multi-dwelling residential with MR-3 zoning.  
 East: Single-dwelling residential with SR-3 zoning 
 South: Multi-dwelling residential with MR-1 zoning and LC, Limited Commercial with a CO, 

Conditional Overlay with vacant land  
 West: Undeveloped with MR-3 zoning 

 
Area Plans: 
The 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan designates the area of this project as “Low/Medium Density 
or Medium/High Density”.  The existing MR-3 zoning is consistent with this land use designation.  The 
proposed PUD does not change the density of this project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Context:  
Schools: The subject property is located within the West Fargo School District and is served by 
Independence Elementary, Liberty Middle and Sheyenne High schools. 
 
Neighborhood:  The subject property is located in the Brandt Crossing Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Brandt Crossing (5009 33rd Avenue South) is located approximately less than 1,000 feet east of 
the subject property and provides the amenities of basketball, dog park, playground, recreational trails, 
and shelter. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: There are off-road bike facilities along Veterans Boulevard that are a component 
of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
PLAT 
The plat proposes to create 21 residential lots to be developed into three and four-unit townhome 
buildings, and one multifamily lot that will not be a part of the PUD. Each residential unit is to be located 
on an individual lot. 
 

BLOCK LOTS ZONING LAND USE 
1 1-7 MR-3 w/PUD Attached single-dwelling residential 
2 1-14 MR-3 w/PUD Attached single-dwelling residential 
3 1 MR-3 No development proposed at this time; 

note that the PUD does not apply to 
Block 3 

 



 

Page 3 of 8 
 

The plan includes requests for a subdivision waiver for modification of waiver of certain subdivision 
design and improvement standards related to street width, cul-de-sacs, and sidewalks.  The need for 
these modifications and waivers and the findings related to them are detailed under the “Subdivision 
Waiver for Street Width” and “Subdivision Waiver for Sidewalks” sections beginning on page 6 below.  
 
Zoning Change and PUD Overlay 
The applicant has applied for a zoning map amendment and a PUD overlay in order to tailor 
development standards to the specifics of the proposed project.  Proposed modifications of the 
development standards of the MR-3 zone are shown in the chart below.  In addition, this project applies 
Alternative Residential Development Options—Attached Housing (LDC Section 20-0506 B) that exempt 
attached housing from lot width, lot area, and building coverage requirements of the underlying zoning 
district, and do not require an interior side setback on the “attached” side of a lot containing an attached 
house.  No separate entitlement is required to apply these Alternate Residential Development Standards, 
as they are allowed by right but the application is confirmed for compliance with the subdivision process. 
 
 Current LDC Development 

Standards for the MR-3 Zone 
PUD Modifications to MR-3 
Development Standards 

Lot Area 5,000 square feet Exempt per Alternative Development 
Options 

Lot Width 50’ Exempt per Alternative Development 
Options 

Setbacks Front—25’ 
Rear—20’ 
Street side—12.5’ 
Interior side—10’ 

Front—decrease to 10’ 
Rear—no change 
Street side—decrease to 10’ 
Interior side- Exempt per Alternative 
Development Options 

Open Space 
Landscaping 

3 plant units per 1,000 square feet 
of lot area 

3.5 plant units per 1,000 square feet 
of total lot area. Applicant proposes 
total planting units and open space 
shall be calculated  based on the 
entire project and not based on each 
individual lot.  Applicant will develop 
a cohesive landscape plan for all 21 
residential lots. 

Building Coverage 35% Exempt per Alternative Development 
Options 

Open space 35% 30% 
 
PUD Master Land Use Plan  
The applicant has submitted a project narrative and PUD Master Land Use which further describe and 
depict the proposed development. These documents are attached. 
 
Additional Information: 
It is important to note that pursuant to Section 20-0302.F, unless otherwise expressly approved, access 
to a PUD must be from a collector and higher classification of street. The roadway that is adjacent to the 
property, 10th Avenue North, is a local street.  
 
ACCESS:  The lots will be accessed by way of dedicated public streets.  Necessary rights of way will be 
dedicated with the plat.  
 
IMPROVEMENTS BY DEVELOPER:  The developer proposes to install the public improvements 
himself, rather than relying on the City for this installation.  The developer shall work with Engineering to 



 

Page 4 of 8 
 

create a developer’s agreement regarding this installation.  This agreement will be reviewed by the 
Public Works Project Evaluation Committee (PWPEC) with a final decision from the City Commission.  
 
STORMWATER:  The applicant has proposed stormwater detention on the adjacent property to the 
north, which is under the same ownership as this project.  Engineering has reviewed this concept with 
the applicant, but at this time does not have the required documentation regarding ownership and 
maintenance of this detention facility, nor the calculations to determine the actual size and capacity of the 
detention facility.  Approval of this project is contingent on Engineering receiving and approving the 
applicants detailed stormwater plan.  
 
Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be 
approved: 
1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning 
classification was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
Staff is unaware of any error in the zoning map as it relates to this property.  The property is currently 
zoned MR-3.  The proposed zoning change adds the PUD overlay to the MR-3 zone for Blocks 1 and 2 
of the development.  The MR-3 zone remains the underlying zoning. (Criteria Satisfied)  
 
2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and 
programs to serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the 
property is developed?  
City staff and other applicable review agencies have reviewed this proposal. Staff finds no deficiencies in 
the ability to provide all of the necessary services to the site. Lots in the subdivision will front on 
dedicated public streets.  The necessary rights of way for these streets will be dedicated with the plat. 
These streets will provide access and public utilities to serve the development.  (Criteria satisfied)  
 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in 
the vicinity?  
Staff has no documentation or evidence to suggest that the approval of this zoning change would 
adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity. Written notice of the proposal was 
sent to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has received one phone 
call from the public relating to preservation of the existing trees on the lot. Staff finds that the approval of 
the zoning change will not adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity. (Criteria 
satisfied) 
 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and 
other adopted policies of the City?   
The LDC states “This Land Development Code is intended to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan 
and related policies in a manner that protects the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
Fargo.” The Growth Plan that applies to this property is the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan; this 
plan designates this property as appropriate for “Low/Medium Density or Medium/High Density” 
residential development.  The project proposes 21 residential units on two acres, yielding a gross density 
of approximately 10.5 dwelling units per acre, which does not exceed the maximum density of 24 
dwelling units per acre allowed in the MR-3 zone. Note that this density calculation excludes the area of 
Block 3, which is not proposed to be developed at this time. Staff finds this proposal is consistent with the 
purpose of the LDC, the applicable growth plan, and other adopted policies of the City.  (Criteria 
satisfied) 
 
Master Land Use Plan: The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission and Board of City 
Commissioners shall consider the following criteria in the review of any Master Land Use Plan.  

 



 

Page 5 of 8 
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through 
strict application of otherwise applicable base zoning district standards, based on the 
purpose and intent of this Land Development Code; 
The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict 
application of the base zoning district. This PUD allows for flexibility in terms of building 
placement and will allow for construction of attached housing on the project site. (Criteria 
Satisfied) 
 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD standards of Section 20-0302; 
Staff has reviewed the PUD Master Land Use Plan and found that it complies with the PUD 
standards of Section 20-0302. The PUD modifies the front, rear, and street side setbacks and the 
landscaping requirements of the MR-3 zone. All other standards and requirements as set forth in 
the LDC have been met or are accounted for through the application of the Alternative 
Development Options—Attached Housing.  (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

3. The City and other agencies will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, 
and programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed; 
City staff and other applicable review agencies have reviewed this proposal. Staff finds no 
deficiencies in the ability to provide all of the necessary services to the site. The subject property 
fronts on existing developed public rights-of-way and will dedicate additional public rights-of-way 
which provide access and public utilities to serve the property.  (Criteria satisfied)  
 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives 
contained in the Area Plan, Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; 
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect 
the general health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. Staff finds that the proposed PUD is in 
keeping with Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan. Specifically, the City’s Go2030 Comprehensive Plan 
supports development within areas of the City that are already serviced with utilities. Staff finds 
this proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC, the Go2030 Comprehensive Plan and 
other adopted policies of the City.  (Criteria Satisfied)  

 
5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the 

development will promote the general welfare of the community. 
The PUD is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will promote the 
general welfare of the community by construction of attached housing in a compact design in this 
neighborhood which is already zoned for multi-dwelling residential.  (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Subdivision  
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria are met before a major plat can be approved 

1. Section 20-0907(C))(1)(Development Review Procedures—Subdivisions—Major 
Subdivisions) of the LDC stipulates that no major subdivision plat application will be 
accepted for land that is not consistent with an approved Growth Plan or zoned to 
accommodate the proposed development.    
The zoning for the development on this property is MR-3.  The MR-3 zone will accommodate the 
proposed single-family development and is consistent with the “Low/Medium Density or 
Medium/High Density” designation for this property in the 2003 Future Land Use Plan.  In 
accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out 
to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. To date, staff has received one phone 
call from the public relating to preservation of the existing trees on the lot. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Section 20-0907.4 of the LDC further stipulates that the Planning Commission shall 
recommend approval or denial of the application and the City Commission shall act to 



 

Page 6 of 8 
 

approve or deny, based on whether it is located in a zoning district that allows the 
proposed development, complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-
06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.   
The current zoning is MR-3.  The proposed zoning change will add the PUD overlay to the MR-3 
zone on Blocks 1 and 2. This zoning is consistent with the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use 
Plan, which designates this property for “Low/Medium Density or Medium/High Density” 
residential development.  The project has been reviewed by the city’s Planning, Engineering, 
Public Works, Inspections, and Fire Departments and found to meet the standards of Article 20-
06 and other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Section 20-0907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board 

of City Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public 
improvements to serve the subdivision.  
The applicant has provided a draft amenities plan that specifies the terms or securing installation 
of public improvements to serve the subdivision.  This amenities plan will be reviewed by the 
Public Works Project Evaluation Committee (PWPEC) prior to the final plat going to City 
Commission. Any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are 
subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public 
infrastructure improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm 
sewer by the square footage basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principles. Note 
that the applicant proposes to do the initial installation of the public improvements himself, and 
shall work with Engineering to create a developer’s agreement that will address this installation.  
This agreement will be reviewed by PWPEC with a final decision by the City Commission.  
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Subvision Waiver For Sidewalk 

This project requires a subdivision waiver for sidewalk as:  
 the sidewalk on the west side does not continue to the property line and  
 the crossings of Hallmark Street and Promontory Street are effectively midblock crossings.  
LDC 20-0609 requires a subdivision waiver for sidewalks in these situations. This waiver must 
include an alternate sidewalk plan.  The applicants PUD Master Land Use plan (copy attached) 
serves as this alternate sidewalk plan, as it depicts the proposed location of sidewalks throughout 
the subdivision. 

 
1. Section 20-0907.D.3.a of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must not be 

detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property or 
improvements in the area in which the property is located. 
The sidewalk on the west side of Hallmark Street is proposed to stop approximately 26 feet short 
of the north end of Hallmark Street. That adjacent property to the north is an apartment complex; 
there is no adjacent public sidewalk on that property to connect with.  This sidewalk connects 
across Hallmark Street to the public sidewalk on Block 2 of the subdivision.  
 
The crossings of Promontory Street, connecting the sidewalk on Block 1 with the sidewalk on 
Block 2, and of Hallmark Street, connecting the sidewalk on Block 3 with the sidewalk on Block 2, 
are considered midblock crossings as there is no actual intersection of streets at this crossing 
point. Staff recommends that these crossings be striped.  
 
Pedestrian connectivity and circulation via standard width public sidewalks within dedicated public 
right of way is maintained throughout the subdivision despite these proposed modifications.   
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 



 

Page 7 of 8 
 

2. Section 20-0901.D.3.b of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must represent the 
least deviation from this Land Development Code that will mitigate the hardship or 
practical difficulty that exists on the subject property. 
Approval of the sidewalk waiver would waive the requirement to construct approximately 26 feet 
of sidewalk which would have no further connection to the north and allow midblock crossings 
across Hallmark Street and Promontory Street. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Section 20-0907.D.3.c of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver shall not have the 

effect of waiving any provisions of this development code other than the Subdivision 
Design and Improvement Standards of Article 20-06. 
Only the sidewalk requirement of Section 20-0609 of the LDC would be affected by approval of 
this waiver. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Subdivision Waiver For Street Width 
This project requires a subdivision waiver for streets for right of way width as the applicant 
proposes reduction in overall right of way width, paving width, and boulevard configuration, and to 
account for there being no cul-de-sacs installed at the north ends of Hallmark Street and 
Promontory Street.  

 
1. Section 20-0907.D.3.a of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must not be 

detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property or 
improvements in the area in which the property is located. 
Hallmark Street and Promontory Street are local streets with parking on one side within an MR-3 
zoned area.  LDC 20-0611(G)(1) specifies a 70-foot wide ROW. The standards between the 
required and proposed ROW are depicted in the chart below: 
 
STANDARD LDC PROPOSED 
Overall width 70 feet 54 feet 
Lanes 2 2 
Paving width 32 feet 29 feet 
Sidewalk width 4.5 feet each side 4.5 feet each side 
Sidewalk location  2.0 feet off property line 0.5 feet off property line 

with 2.0 easement to allow 
sidewalk construction and 
repair 

 
Staff supports the ROW modification for the following reasons: 

 The streets are approximately 220 feet long, only serve this subdivision, and are unlikely 
to continue in the future, as they do not align with any existing public street. 

 There are no individual driveways for the residences along the street. 
 The revised ROW still provides adequate boulevard width for snow storage and an 

uninterrupted boulevard for on-street parking.   
 

LDC section 20-0611(F) requires a cul-de-sac for dead end streets.  Though Hallmark Street and 
Promontory Street appear to “dead end”—that is, not continue beyond the north property line of 
the subdivision—vehicular connectivity is provided between the two streets via a dedicated public 
right of way. Staff supports this modification for the following reason: 

 The streets are connected within the subdivision by a dedicated public right of way, 
identified on the plat as “Alley,” that allows circulation between Hallmark Street and 
Promontory Street.  City Fire and Public Works Departments have determined that this 
connectivity is sufficient for their purposes of fire access and truck turning. This, a cul-de-
sac is not necessary at the north ends of these streets. (Criteria Satisfied) 



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
2. Section 20-0901.D.3.b of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver must represent the 

least deviation from this Land Development Code that will mitigate the hardship or 
practical difficulty that exists on the subject property. 
Approval of the subdivision waiver for ROW width and cul de sac, as described above, would 
allow the applicant’s project design for compact development while still providing sufficient right of 
way and connectivity to provide access, truck turning, snow storage, and on-street parking on one 
side of the street, as well as pedestrian circulation throughout the subdivision on dedicated public 
sidewalks. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
3. Section 20-0907.D.3.c of the LDC stipulates that a Subdivision Waiver shall not have the 

effect of waiving any provisions of this development code other than the Subdivision 
Design and Improvement Standards of Article 20-06. 
Only the street standards requirement of Section 20-0609 of the LDC would be affected by 
approval of this waiver. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend 
approval to the City Commission of the proposed: 1) Zoning Change from MR-3, Multi-Dwelling 
Residential to MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay and 2) 
PUD Master Land Use Plan; and 3) a plat of the Villas at Shadowcrest Addition, contingent on 
Engineer reviewing and approving the applicant’s detailed stormwater detention plan,  as the proposal 
complies with the Go2030 Fargo Comprehensive Plan, 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan, 
Standards of  Article 20-06, Section 20-0908.B (7), and Section 20-0906.F (1-4) of the LDC and all other 
applicable requirements of the LDC.” 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Draft Preliminary Plat 
4. PUD Narrative 
5. Draft PUD Master Plan 
6. Project Cross Section 
7. Draft Amenities Plan 
 

 

 



Subject Property

36 AVE S

33 AVE S

VE
TE

R
A

N
S BLV

D

35 AVE S

TYLER AVE S

TANNER AVE S

SE
TE

R
 P

K
W

Y S

56
 S

T 
S

55 S
T S

CORDOVA
LOOP S

34
AVE S

54 ST S
¯

Fargo Planning Commission 
Feet March 6, 2018

Plat (Major), PUD and Zone Change
 (MR-3 to MR-3 w/ a PUD)

Villas at Shadow Crest Addition

300

5601 34th Avenue South

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMU
GC
GO

LC

MR-2
MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

36 AVE S

33 AVE S

VE
TE

R
A

N
S BLV

D

35 AVE S

TYLER AVE S

TANNER AVE S

SE
TE

R
 P

K
W

Y S

56
 S

T 
S

55 S
T S

CORDOVA
LOOP S

34
AVE S

54 ST S
¯

Fargo Planning Commission 
Feet March 6, 2018

Plat (Major), PUD and Zone Change
 (MR-3 to MR-3 w/ a PUD)

Villas at Shadow Crest Addition

300

5601 34th Avenue South



 R

JSZ 2/26/18 D16.115309_V_PROP_E1-PLAT-SHEET 1.dwg

CITY OF FARGO ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT APPROVAL

Approved by City Engineer this _____ day of __________________, 2018.

__________________________________
Mark Bittner, City Engineer

CITY OF FARGO PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL

Approved by the City of Fargo Planing Commission this _____ day of

______________________, 2018.

_______________________________________
Shara Fischer, Planning Commission Chair

On this _____ day of __________________, in the year 2018 before me
personally appeared Mark Bittner, City Engineer known to me to be the
person who is described in and who executed the within instrument, and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same.

Notary Public

State of North Dakota
County of Cass

SS

On this _____ day of __________________, in the year 2018 before me
personally appeared Shara Fischer, Planning Commission Chair, known to me
to be the person who is described in and who executed the within instrument,
and acknowledged to me that she executed the same on behalf of the Fargo
Planning Commission.

Notary Public

State of North Dakota
County of Cass

SS

FARGO CITY COMMISSION APPROVAL

Approved by the Board of City Commissioners and ordered filed  this

_______ day of ________________________, 2018.

________________________________
Timothy J. Mahoney, Mayor

Attest: __________________________
              Steven Spraugue, City Auditor

On this ______day of ____________________, in the year 2018 before me
personally appeared Timothy J. Mahoney, Mayor, and  Steven Sprague, City
Auditor known to me to be the persons who are described in and who executed
the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same
on behalf of the City of Fargo.

Notary Public

State of North Dakota
County of Cass

SS

OWNERS DESCRIPTION AND DEDICATION

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That OWNERS NAME as owner of a parcel of land located in
the Northwest Quarter of Section 28, Township 139 North, Range 49 West of the Fifth Principal
Meridian, Cass County, North Dakota and more particularly described as follows:

On this _____ day of __________________, in the year 2018 before me personally appeared
NAME, TITLE, known to me to be the person who is described in and who executed the within
instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same on behalf of COMPANY-LLC

_________________________
Notary Public

State of North Dakota
County of Cass

SS

Lot One, Block Two, of SCHATZ THIRD ADDITION to the City of Fargo, situate in the County
of Cass and the State of North Dakota.

Containing 312,934 square feet of land, more or less.

OWNER:

_________________________________
By:  NAME, TITLE

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, Bruce W. Skipton, Registered Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of North Dakota
do hereby certify that this plat is a correct representation of the survey, that all distances shown are
correct and that the monuments for the guidance of future surveys have been located or placed in the
ground as shown and that the outside boundary lines are correctly designated on the plat.

  _____________________________________
  Bruce W. Skipton, Professional Land Surveyor
  North Dakota License Number LS-8251

On this _____ day of __________________, in the year 2018 before me personally appeared
Bruce W. Skipton, known to me to be the person who is described in and who executed the
within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same.

_________________________
Notary Public

State of North Dakota
County of Cass

SS

R

PREPARED BY:

Said owner has caused the above described parcel of land to be surveyed and platted as " VILLAS AT
SHADOW CREST ADDITION" to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota and do hereby vacate the
10 foot wide utility easements as shown for vacation on this plat and do hereby dedicate to the public
for public use all Streets, Alley, Utility Easements and Sidewalk Easements as shown on the plat and
do hereby dedicate to Block 1 the 14 foot wide private ingress/egress easement in Block 1 as shown
on this plat for the purposes so stated, and do hereby dedicate to Block 2 the 14 foot wide private
ingress/egress easement in Block 2 as shown on this plat for the purposes so stated.

2/26/18
SHEET 1 OF 2

A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1 OF SCHATZ THIRD ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF FARGO, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

SCALE   IN   FEET

0 30 60

LEGEND
5/8" x 18" LONG REBAR, MONUMENT SET

MONUMENT FOUND

EASEMENT LINE
EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

SUBJECT PROPERTY LINE

CAP MARKED BY LIC. NO. LS-8251

ORIENTATION OF THIS BEARING
SYSTEM IS PER THE PLAT OF

SCHATZ THIRD ADDITION

S 
E 

E 
  S

 H
 E

 E
 T

   
2 

 O
 F

  2
10 FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT TO BE 

R

VACATED WITH RECORDING OF THIS DOCUMENT



2/26/18

SCALE   IN   FEET

0 60 120

JSZ 2/26/18 D16.115309_V_PROP_E1-PLAT-SHEET 2.dwg

A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 1 OF SCHATZ THIRD ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF FARGO, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

ORIENTATION OF THIS BEARING
SYSTEM IS PER THE PLAT OF

SCHATZ THIRD ADDITION

R

PREPARED BY:

SHEET 2 OF 2

SEE SHEET 1 OF 2

LEGEND
5/8" x 18" LONG REBAR, MONUMENT SET

MONUMENT FOUND

EASEMENT LINE
EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

SUBJECT PROPERTY LINE

CAP MARKED BY LIC. NO. LS-8251

R

10 FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT TO 
BE VACATED WITH THIS DOCUMENT









Site Amenities and Project Plan 
Villas at Shadow Crest Page 1 

 

 

Site Amenities and Project Plan for Villas at Shadow Crest 
February 19, 2018 

 
The Site Amenities and Project plan of Villas at Shadow Crest Addition on December 20th, 
2017 is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference as the Site Amenities and 
Project Plan for Villas at Shadow Crest, subject to the following changes and additions: 

 
Location: Villas at Shadow Crest is legally described as Lots 1 through 7 of 
Block 1 ,Lots 1 through 14 of Block 2, and Lots 1 and 2, Block 3 Villas at Shadow 
Crest Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota. The project 
consists of 2.0 acres. 

 
Details: The subdivision provides for 21 residential lots to be developed into 
three and four-unit townhome buildings, and two multifamily lots that will not be 
a part of the PUD. Each residential unit is to be located on an individual lot. The 
project is intended be located within the current base zoning district of MR‐3 
(Multi‐Dwelling Residential), along with a PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
overlay zoning district.  Lots 1and 2 Bock 3 shall not be governed by the PUD. 
 
Right of Way (ROW).  The project accommodates right of way dedication for 
public roadway and utilities, with specific details outlined below:   
ROW dedication for Hallmark Street and Promontory Street shall be 54’ 

 Street widths shall be 29 feet from back of curb to back of curb with 
parking allowed on one side of the street with appropriate signage 
installed with the public improvements. 

 Street lighting shall be installed per City of Fargo standards. 
 A 4.5’ sidewalk shall be installed within the right of way and the outside 

edge shall be installed 0.5’ off the property line.   
 A minimum 7.5’ boulevard shall be maintained. 
 31’ ROW shall be dedicated for a public alley connecting Hallmark Street 

and Promontory Street.   
 The alley shall be constructed with 20’ of paving including curb and 

gutter. 
 A 4.5’ sidewalk shall be constructed south of the paving within the alley 

ROW connecting the east sidewalk with Hallmark St to the west sidewalk 
within Promontory St.  This sidewalk shall be constructed 0.5’ off the 
property line to maintain a minimum 6’ boulevard. 



Site Amenities and Project Plan 
Villas at Shadow Crest Page 2 

 

 

 
 
Private Alley: A private concrete alley shall be constructed along the rear 
property lines on Block 1 and Block 2 as shown on the plat.  This concrete alley 
shall be a minimum of 6” reinforced concrete and all maintenance shall be the 
responsibility of the association.  All snow removal from the alley shall be the 
responsibility of the Association. 

 
Infrastructure: 

 
Infrastructure Installation: The Developer of the project will install all on‐site 
public roads, alleys, approaches, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, water, & street 
lights.  The project shall be designed by a registered engineer. Infrastructure 
layout and design parameters can be found on the submitted PUD Site Plans. 



Site Amenities and Project Plan 
Villas at Shadow Crest Page 3 

 

 

The infrastructure within right of way shall be public and will be turned over to 
the City of Fargo upon completion and acceptance of the construction by the 
Engineering Department.  The construction of the alley shall be private and the 
City will not be responsible for infrastructure funding, installation, maintenance, 
or repair. 

 
Infrastructure Funding: The Developer of the project will fund the entire cost of 
improvements to the site.  

 
Infrastructure Maintenance and Repair: The Association shall be responsible 
for any and all future maintenance and repair for the private alley infrastructure. 
The expense and burden of future maintenance and repair shall rest solely on 
the Association and the Owners as outlined in the Association Documents. 
The infrastructure within the right of way shall be public and the City will be 
responsible for infrastructure maintenance or repair in accordance with current 
standards. 

 
Association: The project will be managed by a professional property management 
company hired by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of 
individuals elected by the owners of the lots. The Association shall be governed by 
the Villas at Shadow Crest Townhomes Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, 
Party Wall Covenants, and the Villas at Shadow Crest Owner’s Association By‐
Laws (Association Documents). 

 
Capital Improvement Fund: A Capital Improvement Fund shall be created by 
the Association. The Fund will used to ensure the success of the Association 
in the future. It’s only purpose will be have a reserve for capital improvements 
such as private alley repairs, sidewalk repairs, and landscaping repairs. 

 
Association Dues: Monthly dues of 115% of Association expenses will be 
privately assessed by the Association and collected from the owners. The 
property management company will handle this responsibility. Excess cash will 
be transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund yearly, with the approval of the 
Board. These fees will cover Property Management Company fees, 
landscaping fees, snow removal, lawn care, and other miscellaneous costs. 

 
Sidewalks: The public sidewalk within the City Right of Way will be installed by 
the Developer.  The sidewalks shall be located in accordance with the plan.  
Sidewalks shall be maintained by the Association.   

 
  



Site Amenities and Project Plan 
Villas at Shadow Crest Page 4 

 

 

Landscaping: Landscaping will be installed pursuant to the City of Fargo 
requirements (LDC §20‐ 0705). Required landscaping will be installed by the 
Developer and the Association shall be fully responsible for all future upkeep. 

 
Parking and Traffic Rules and Regulations:  The “public alley” shall be 1-way 
with traffic allowed to travel from west too east.  Proper signage shall be 
installed.  Private alleys shall be marked as 1-way allowing traffic to enter from 
the South and exit to the North.  No parking shall be allowed within the alleys.  A 
“No Parking” sign shall be installed at each end of the alleys.  Parking will be 
allowed on the east side of both Hallmark St. and Promontory St.  Pavement 
width for this public street were designed in accordance with the Urban Street 
Standards Table 20-0611-1 to allow for parking on one side of the street.   

 
Snow Removal: Snow removal for the private alley and public sidewalks will be 
performed by an agent hired by the Property Management Company. Owners 
and/or tenants will be responsible for snow removal from steps, landings, and 
balconies. The City will not be responsible for snow removal except for Hallmark 
Street, Promontory Street, and the public Alley.    
 
Garbage Collection: Garbage collection shall be performed by the City of Fargo 
Solid Waste.   

 
Easements: The Developer has entered into easements for the following within the 
plat: 

 
a. Block 1 - 14 Foot Wide Private Ingress/Egress Easement.   
b. Block 2 – 14 Foot Wide Private Ingress/Egress Easement (7’ Each 

Side of the rear property line)  
 
Flood Protection: 

 
Storm Water Detention Facilities:   The proposed development shall construct a 
detention pond in conjunction with the adjacent landowner on the southeast corner 
of Lot 30, Block 14 of Brandt Crossing 1st Addition.  

 
FEMA Floodplain Expansion:  These lots are not within the current effective 
floodplain and are outside of the 41’ inundation area and are therefore not 
subject to City of Fargo flood proofing requirements.   

 
Sump Pump: Sump pumps shall be installed within the Units that have 
basements or crawl spaces in the Project which will drain to storm water inlets. 

 



Page 1 of 6 
 

Agenda Item # 5a, 5b, 5c 

 
City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Kirkham’s 2nd Addition Date: 2/27/2018 

Location: 1114, 1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, 
and 1136 14th Street North Staff Contact: Aaron Nelson 

Legal Description: Lots 4-9, Block 14, Kirkham’s 2nd Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: Jay Alsop, APM/Chris Hawley 
Architects Engineer: N/A 

Entitlements Requested: 

Growth Plan Amendment (To change the future land use designation from Low 
Density Residential to Primarily Residential with Commercial High Density 
Residential); Zoning Change (from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential and MR-2, 
Multi-Dwelling Residential to LC, Limited Commercial, MR-3, Multi-Dwelling 
Residential, with a PUD, Planned Unit Development Overlay on Lots 4-11); and a 
PUD Master Land Use Plan. 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 6, 2018 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Household Living (Detached House & 
Duplex) 

 Land Use: Household Living (Multi-Dwelling Structure) 

Zoning: SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential and MR-2, 
Multi-Dwelling Residential 
 

 Zoning: MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential, with PUD, 
Planned Unit Development, Overlay 

Uses Allowed:  
SR-3 – Detached houses, daycare centers up to 12 
children, attached houses, duplexes, parks and open 
space, religious institutions, safety services, schools, 
and basic utilities 
 
MR-2 – Detached houses, attached houses, duplexes, 
multi-dwelling structures, daycare centers up to 12 
children, group living, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, schools, and basic utilities 
 

 Uses Allowed: 
MR-3 – Detached houses, attached houses, duplexes, 
multi-dwelling structures, daycare centers up to 12 
children, group living, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, schools, and basic utilities 

Maximum Density Allowed: SR-3 allows a maximum 
of 8.7 units per acre and MR-2 allows a maximum of 
20 dwelling units per acre. 

 Maximum Density Allowed: MR-3 with proposed PUD 
overlay would allow a maximum of 86 units per acre. 

 
Proposal: 
The applicant is seeking approval of a 1) growth plan amendment, 2) zoning map amendment, and 3) PUD Master 
Land Use Plan. The intent of these three applications is to allow the development of a multi-dwelling structure. The 
proposed structure would consist of six levels—one below ground and five stories above ground. The lower level 
and first floor would accommodate off-street parking while the second through fifth floors would contain 82 dwelling 
units. Of these 82 residential units, 48 would be studio units, 8 would be one-bedroom units, 22 would be two-
bedroom units, and 4 would be three-bedroom units, for a total of 112 bedrooms. 
 
Growth Plan Amendment 
The growth plan amendment is intended to modify the 2009 Future Land Use Map that was adopted as an 
addendum to the 2004 Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood Plan. Within the Future Land Use Map, the subject property 



Page 2 of 6 
 

is located in the northwest corner of an area designated as Low Density Residential. The proposed growth plan 
amendment would reclassify this area as High Density Residential. 
 
Zoning Change 
The zoning map amendment would rezone the subject property from SR-3 (Single-Dwelling Residential) and MR-2 
(Multi-Dwelling Residential) to MR-3 (Multi-Dwelling Residential). In addition, the zoning map amendment would 
also establish a PUD (Planned Unit Development) overlay zoning district for the subject property. This PUD overlay 
is intended to modify a handful of the MR-3 zoning standards and to establish additional development requirements 
relating to bicycle parking, sidewalk connectivity, and architectural standards. 
 
As permitted by Section 20-0301(E) of the LDC, a number of different zoning standards are eligible for modification 
by the ordinance which establishes the PUD zoning overlay. The proposed PUD overlay is intended to modify the 
following specific MR-3 zoning standards: 

 Increase the maximum residential density from 24 to 86 units per acre; 
 Reduce the minimum front setback from 25 feet to 10 feet; 
 Reduce the minimum rear setback from 20 feet to 10 feet; 
 Increase the maximum height from 60 feet to 63 feet; 
 Increase the maximum building coverage from 35% of the lot area to 65% of the lot area; 
 Reduce the minimum required open space from 35% of the lot area to 22% of the lot area; 
 Modify the minimum off-street parking ratio for multi-dwelling structures from 1.5 parking stalls per 

efficiency unit and 2.25 parking stalls per 1 or more bedroom unit to 1.6 parking stalls per unit. 
 Increase the maximum building height (as required by the Residential Protection Standards) from 45 feet 

and 55 feet to 63 feet. 
 
In addition to these modifications, the PUD overlay would also establish the following additional requirements for 
the development: 

 Requirements for bicycle parking; 
 Requirements for pedestrian walkway connectivity; and 
 Architectural standards regarding building orientation, building materials, ground-floor transparency, and 

building articulation. These architectural standards are consistent with those of the adjacent UMU zoning 
district. 

 
A copy of the draft PUD ordinance language is attached. 
 
PUD Master Land Use Plan 
The PUD Master Land Use Plan will establish the general layout of the proposed development, including the 
physical location of the building, parking areas, open spaces, and amenities. The PUD Final Plan and all future 
building and construction plans would need to conform with the PUD Master Land Use Plan. In summary, the 
building is centrally located on the subject property with open space located on the southeast corner. There are off-
street parking spaces located adjacent to the public alley on the west side of the property. There are two levels of 
interior parking located on the lower level and first floor. The second through fifth floors consist of residential 
dwelling units. The proposed PUD Master Land Use Plan is attached. 
  
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 

 North: LC, Limited Commercial, with retail sales and services 
 East: Across 14th Street North; MR-3, Multi-Dwelling Residential, MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential, 

and SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential, with group living and household living uses 



Page 3 of 6 
 

 South: MR-2, Multi-Dwelling Residential, with household living use 
 West: Across the alley; UMU, University Mixed-Use, and P/I, Public and Institutional, with education, 

retail sales and service, and household living uses 
 

Area Plans: 
The subject property is located within the Roosevelt-NDSU 
Neighborhood. The Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood Plan was 
adopted in 2004, and has a stated vision for the neighborhood to be 
“a place where the past, present and future come together in a 
diverse and vibrant environment that is attractive to both 
homeowners and to students because it is safe, clean, alive and 
unique.” The Plan outlines three goals to help reach this vision, 
relating to housing, safety, and quality of life. 
 
A Future Land Use Plan for the Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood 
(adopted in late 2009 as an addendum to the 2004 Neighborhood 

Plan) was created to provide a framework for 
development and to provide guidance in decision 
making for home-owners, landlords, and 
developers. The future land use plan identifies the 
subject property as being located in the northwest 
corner of an area designated as Low Density 
Residential. The area to the north and west of this 
area has a future land-use classification of Primarily 
Residential with Commercial.  
 

Schools and Parks: 
Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo School District and is served by Roosevelt Elementary, 
Ben Franklin Middle and North High schools. 
 
Neighborhood: The subject property is located within the Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Johnson Soccer Complex (1420 11th Avenue N) is located approximately 250 feet southwest of the subject 
property and offers amenities including multi-purpose fields, picnic tables, playground, restrooms, shelter, and 
soccer fields. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: Several bike facilities are located in close proximity to the subject property.  On–road bike 
facilities are located along 11th Avenue North and the adjacent western alley.  Off–road facilities are located along 
12th Avenue North.  All facilities are components of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 

Background: 
The owner of the subject property, Jay Alsop, previously submitted an entitlement application for a mixed-use 
project on the northern half of the subject property and including the adjacent credit union property to the north, in 
November of 2015. That project was reviewed by the Planning Commission on February 2, 2016 before being 
continued to the following month. That application was subsequently continued several more times at the request of 
the applicant before ultimately being withdrawn prior to the Planning Commission taking any action on it. 
 
In the time since that previous application, the owner has acquired several additional properties to the south of the 
previous project area and has partnered with a new architecture team to design the proposed PUD project. An early 
version of the project was introduced in November of 2017, along with a partial application. This version proposed a 
larger mixed-use building that included the credit union property located north of the subject property. At the time of 
the submittal of the completed application, this concept was revised to remove the credit union from the project, 
making it a single-use residential development. 



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Public Communications: 
On November 2, 2017, the applicant, owner, and about a dozen residents of the neighborhood met at City Hall in 
order to go over the proposed project and to discuss. (At that time, the proposed project was a mixed-use building 
which would have included the credit union property to the north of the subject property.) The applicant presented 
an overview and details of the project, answered questions, and heard comments from the public. There were a 
number of concerns expressed from the public. Most of the concerns raised were relating to the perceived 
inconsistency of the proposed project with the character and scale of the neighborhood south and east of the 
subject property (such as density, building height, architectural style). 
 
Upon the subsequent submittal of this application, public notices were sent out to property owners within 300 feet of 
the subject property on February 9, 2018, in accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC. Upon request of the 
Roosevelt Neighborhood Association, additional notice letters were mailed to property owners within 1,000 feet of 
the subject property. On February 27, 2018, staff received a packet of written comments containing comments and 
signatures from neighborhood residents, the Roosevelt Neighborhood Association, and Horace Mann Area 
Neighborhood Association. This packet of comments and signatures is attached. 
 
An open house was scheduled for March 1, 2018 to provide a formal opportunity for the public to review and 
comment on the proposed growth plan amendment. As of the writing of this staff report (February 27, 2018), the 
open house has not yet taken place. Comments received at the open house will be presented to the Planning 
Commission at the March 6 Planning Commission meeting. The applicant will be present at the open house to 
answer any questions from the public regarding the proposed application. 
 
Representatives of the Roosevelt Neighborhood Association have stated that comments submitted in 2016 for the 
owner’s pervious development application are applicable to the current application, and have requested that those 
comments be included with this staff report. Although the previously proposed project was of a different design and 
that application was withdrawn prior to the submittal of this current application, the previous application was similar 
to the current application. As such, staff has attached these previous comments to this staff report for reference, 
along with the staff report and packet materials from February 2, 2016. 
 
Dimensional Standards: 
The proposed PUD would establish a maximum residential density of 86 units per acre. Compared to adjacent 
residential zoning districts, the proposed density is less restrictive than the MR-3, MR-2, and SR-3 zoning districts 
(which have maximum densities of 24, 20, and 8.7 units per acre, respectively), but is more restrictive than the 
UMU zoning district (which requires a minimum density of 18 units per acre). The table below summarizes how the 
proposed PUD dimensional standards relate to those of the adjacent residential zoning districts. 
 

Dimensional Standard SR-3 MR-2 MR-3 UMU Proposed 
PUD 

Density (units per acre) 8.7 Max 20 Max 24 Max 18 Min 86 Max 
Front Setback 20’ 25’ 25’ 10’ 10’ 
Interior Side Setback 5’ or 10% 

lot width 
25’ or 15% 
lot width 10’ 5’ 10’ 

Rear Setback 15’ 20’ 20’ 15’ 10’ 
Maximum Building Coverage (percent of lot area) 40% 35% 35% 75% 65% 
Minimum Open Space (percent of lot area) N/A 35% 35% N/A 22% 
Maximum Height 35’ 45’ 60’ 60’ 63’ 

 
Parking & Access: 
For multi-dwelling structures, the Land Development Code currently requires off-street parking spaces to be 
provided at a ratio of 1.5 spaces per efficiency dwelling unit and 2.25 spaces per units that are one-bedroom and 
larger. (These ratios do not apply to multi-dwelling structures located within the UMU zoning district where the 
minimum ratio is 1.25 parking stalls per unit, nor within the DMU zoning district where there are no minimum 
parking requirements). The proposed project would include 48 efficiency units and 34 units that are one-bedroom or 
larger. This would equate to 149 total off-street parking spaces per the minimum ratios of the LDC. The proposed 
PUD application would modify these parking minimums to require 1.6 spaces per unit (of any size), which would 



Page 5 of 6 
 

equate to 132 off-street parking stalls. This ratio would result in a reduction of 17 parking spaces, given the 
breakdown of efficiency and non-efficiency units. The table below shows how the proposed ratio relates to the LDC 
parking ratios. 
 

Multi-Dwelling Unit Type LDC Parking Ratio Proposed Parking Ratio Change 
Efficiency Unit 1.5 per unit 1.6 per unit Increase of 1 parking space per 10 units 
1+ Bedroom Unit 2.25 per unit 1.6 per unit Reduction of 1 parking space per 1.54 units 

 
The proposed project includes 132 off-street parking stalls within the subject property. Thirteen parallel parking 
spaces will be provided on the west side of the lot, just east of the alley. The remaining 120 parking spaces will be 
provided within the building on the lower level and first floor. Access to the internal parking will be from 14th Street, 
on the east side of the building. 
 
The PUD Overlay would require that sidewalk connections and bicycle parking facilities be incorporated into the 
design of the project, to encourage multi-modal access to the property. The property is located adjacent to the 
NDSU campus, which provides opportunity for walking and biking trips, as opposed to vehicle trips. 
 
The subject property is also located in close proximity to several existing bus routes. MATBUS Routes 13, 31, 32E, 
32W, and 34 all run within a block of the subject property, providing access to destination such as the NDSU 
campus and downtown Fargo. 
 
Current Status: 
As referenced throughout this staff report, the applicant’s proposal has evolved over time. As of the writing of this 
staff report, staff continues to work with the applicant to confirm and solidify the details of the PUD, and 
communicate these details to interested citizens. In order to provide additional time for all parties involved to 
communicate and respond to the details of this PUD project, staff is recommending continuation of the application. 
It is staff’s intent to present this application at the March 6 Planning Commission meeting in order to introduce the 
project and to hear public comments, but to recommend continuation of the application to April 3 in order to give all 
parties involved additional time to coordinate and finalize the details of the application. In summary, staff intends for 
this application to be heard by the Planning Commission twice. Once on March 6 for information, discussion, and 
public hearing purposes, and again on April 3 for a second public hearing and recommendation from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
 
 
Growth Plan Evaluation Criteria: Section 20-0905(H) of the LDC states that the Planning Commission and City 
Commissioners shall consider whether the Growth Plan is consistent with and serves to implement adopted plans 
and policies of the city. 
 
Although the Roosevelt-NDSU Future Land Use Plan does not address amendments, the 2007 Growth Plan sets 
forth the following criteria that should be used to evaluate any proposed growth plan amendment: 
 

1. Is the proposed change consistent with surrounding land uses, both existing and future? 
 

2. Does the proposed change involve a street alignment or connection?  If so, how does this change affect 
the transportation system and the land uses in the surrounding area, both existing and future. 
 

3. How does the proposed change work with the larger area in terms of land use balance and other factors 
that could influence the proposed change?  Are there physical features or developments in the vicinity that 
make the change positive or negative for the City and the area in general? 
 

4. How does the proposed change impact the long term sustainability of the city? Does the change contribute 
to or detract from the walkability and livability of the city? 

 
Zoning 
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning classification 

was established or by an error in the zoning map? 
 

2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the properties are developed?  

 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity?  

 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other adopted 

policies of the City?   
 
Master Land Use Plan: The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission and Board of City Commissioners shall 
consider the following criteria in the review of any Master Land Use Plan.  
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict application of 
otherwise applicable base zoning district standards, based on the purpose and intent of this Land 
Development Code; 
 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD standards of Section 20-0302; 
 

3. The City and other agencies will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development proposed, at the time the properties are developed; 
 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in the 
Area Plan, Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; 

 
5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will 

promote the general welfare of the community. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
At this point, staff is bringing this item to Planning Commission for a public hearing in order to hear public 
comments and to allow preliminary discussion by the Planning Commission. At this time staff is recommending that 
this item be continued to the April Planning Commission meeting. It is staff’s intent to bring this item to the April 
Planning Commission meeting for a second public hearing and a recommendation from Planning Commission. 
 
Suggested Motion: “To continue this item to the April 3rd Planning Commission meeting.” 
  
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Growth Plan Change Map 
4. Draft PUD Ordinance  
5. Draft PUD Master Land Use Plan 
6. Project narrative & letters from applicant 
7. Illustrative renderings & project plans 
8. Public Comments 
9. Planning Commission packet (including Staff Report & Public Comments) from the withdrawn 2016 

application. 
 



Subject Property

U
N

IV
E

R
SITY

 D
R

 N

12 AVE N

ALB
R

E
C

H
T B

LVD
 N

14 S
T N

ADMINISTRATION AVE N

15 S
T N

BA
R

R
E

TT ST N

C
O

LLE
G

E
 S

T N

BO
LLE

Y
 D

R
 N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

PUD Master Land Use Plan, Zone Change
(SR-3 & MR-2 to LC), & Growth Plan Amendment

Kirkhams 2nd Addition

300
Feet

1114, 1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, and 1136 14th St N

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5

NC
NO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AG
DMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

U
N

IV
E

R
SITY

 D
R

 N

12 AVE N

ALB
R

E
C

H
T B

LVD
 N

14 S
T N

ADMINISTRATION AVE N

15 S
T N

BA
R

R
E

TT ST N

C
O

LLE
G

E
 S

T N

BO
LLE

Y
 D

R
 N

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

PUD Master Land Use Plan, Zone Change
(SR-3 & MR-2 to LC), & Growth Plan Amendment

Kirkhams 2nd Addition

300
Feet

1114, 1118, 1122, 1128, 1132, and 1136 14th St N



¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Proposed Growth Plan Amendment
Roosevelt-NDSU Future Land Use Plan

Kirkham's Second Addition 1114, 1118, 1122, 1128,
1132 & 1136 14th St N 

Existing Land Use Plan

Proposed Amendment

Land Use
Commercial with Res
High Density Res
Low Density Res
Medium Density Res
Mixed Density Res
Park/Open Space
Public
Res with Commercial

Area of
Amendment

Land Use
Commercial with Res
High Density Res
Low Density Res
Medium Density Res
Mixed Density Res
Park/Open Space
Public
Res with Commercial



7 AVE N

12 AVE N

10 ST N

15 AVE N

12 ST N

10 AVE N

9 
ST

 N

8 
ST

 N

5 
ST

 N

B
R

O
A

D
W

AY
 N

18 ST N

13 AVE N

9 AVE N

11 AVE N

6 AVE N

U
N

IVER
SITY D

R
 N16 ST N

11
 S

T 
N

21 ST N

17 ST N

C
O

LLEG
E ST N

20 ST N

14 ST N

15 ST N
B

O
LLEY D

R
 N

7 
ST

 N

8 AVE N

19 ST N

A
LB

R
EC

H
T B

LVD
 N

B
A

R
R

ETT ST N

14 AVE N

GREAT NORTHERN DR N

8 ST N19 ST N

12 ST N

8 ST N

9 AVE N

7 
ST

 N

14 AVE N

7 
ST

 N

11 ST N

8 
ST

 N

11 ST N

5 ST N

8 AVE N

8 AVE N 9 ST N

11
 S

T 
N

7 ST N

5 ST N

11 ST N

18 ST N 11 AVE N 14 ST N

9 ST N

Legend
Roosevelt/NDSU Neighborhood

Building Footprint
0-2 units

3 up to 62 units

Future Land Use
Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Mixed Density Residential

Primarily Residential W/ Commercial

Primarily Commercial W/ Residential

Park/Open Space

Public

Bike Path

Text

Future Land Use Map 

ANelson
Polygonal Line

ANelson
Line

ANelson
Line



 
Draft PUD Overlay 

Kirkham’s 2nd Addition 
2-27-2018 

 
 
 

 

This PUD Overlay shall modify the base zoning requirements as follows. 
 
 
Residential Density: The maximum residential density allowed shall be 86 dwelling units per acre. 
 
Setbacks: 

 The minimum front setback shall be 10 feet. 

 The minimum rear setback shall be 10 feet. 
 
Height: The maximum height shall be 63 feet. 
 
Building Coverage: The maximum building coverage shall be 65% of the lot area. 
 
Open Space: The minimum open space shall be 22% of the lot area. 
 
Parking: The minimum off-street parking requirements for the Household Living (multi-Dwelling 
Structure) use category shall be 1.6 parking spaces per unit. 
 
Residential Protection Standards: The building height restrictions of the Residential Protection Standards 
(LDC §20-0704.D) shall be modified to allow a building height of up to 63 feet. 
 
Additional Standards: 

 Bicycle parking facilities, such as a bike rack or bike lockers, shall be provided on site. 
 

 An on-site system of pedestrian walkways shall be provided between building entrances and 
public sidewalks located along the perimeter of the block. 

 

 Building Orientation: 
1) At least one primary building entry shall face a public street.  
2) The building shall be designed to have all exterior walls with equal design consideration, to 

include materials, color, articulation and general aesthetics for the purpose of access and 
appreciation by the general public. 

3) Building elevations that face a public street shall have at least 15 percent of the wall facing 
the street consist of windows or entrance areas.  

  

 Materials: 
1) All walls shall be finished with architectural materials such as brick, glass, stone, ceramic, 

stucco, precast panels, exterior insulation finish systems (e.g. dryvit), seamless steel siding 
with a ceramic hybrid paint finish, fiber cement siding, or curtain walls. Building elevation 
materials shall be commercial grade, durable, and have a multi-generational life span.  



 
Draft PUD Overlay 

Kirkham’s 2nd Addition 
2-27-2018 

 
 
 

 

2) The following materials may not be used other than for purposes of providing accent: 
insulated metal panels; wood-based materials; asphalt; and decorated concrete block. 
When these materials are used, the materials must be of commercial grade.  

3) The use of architectural metal panels and wood panels for enclosure of mechanical 
equipment shall be permitted.  

4) Mirrored glass or one-way glass with a reflectance of greater than 40 percent shall be 
prohibited from covering more than 40 percent of exterior walls.  

 

 Ground-Floor Transparency: 
At least 25 percent of the ground-floor façade of buildings along public streets must be 
comprised of windows, doors and other transparent elements (e.g. glass block). Calculations 
shall be based on the total square feet of the elevation of the ground floor. Existing buildings 
along sidewalks to which interior renovations or structural improvements are proposed shall be 
excluded from this requirement; however, in no case shall the existing transparency be reduced. 
 

 Articulation: 
1) Offsets  

a) As to building elevation walls, as visible above ground, that are longer than 100 feet wall 
plane projections or recesses having a depth of at least two feet and extending for a 
minimum of 25% of the length of such walls must be incorporated into the building 
design.. 

b) As to building heights taller than 35 feet, horizontal design features on the building’s 
façade must be incorporated into the building design. Examples of horizontal design 
features include moldings, balconies, wainscoting, water tables, sills or changes in color, 
texture or material.  

2) Architectural features  
a) The building design shall include integrated design features to avoid monotony, to 

create visual interest, and to enhance the pedestrian scale, all of which is to be designed 
to create compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. Examples of features that 
can be included are:  
i) Canopies 
ii) Cornices  
iii) Eaves  
iv) Arched entries, balconies, or breezeway entrances  
v) Stone or brick accent walls  
vi) Decorative stone or brick banding  
vii) Verandas, porches, balconies or decks  
viii) Projected walls or dormers  
ix) Variation of roof lines  
x) Decorative caps or chimneys 



ANelson
Typewritten Text
PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN

































































































Item # 11a, 11b & 11c 

 
City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Kirkham’s Second Addition Date: 1-27-2016 

Location: 
1128, 1132, and 1136 14th Street 
North; 1404 12th Avenue North Staff Contact: Aaron Nelson/Maegin Rude 

Owner(s)/Applicant: 
APM LLLP / L2H Development, 
LLC Engineer: N/A 

Reason for Request: 

Zoning Change from SR-3, MR-2 and LC, with a C-O to LC, with a PUD overlay; a PUD 
Master Land Use Plan; and a Growth Plan Amendment; all on Lots 7-11, Block 14, 
Kirkham’s Second Addition 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: February 2, 2016 
 
 

Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Detached housing and credit union  Land Use: Multi-dwelling housing and credit union 
Zoning: SR-3, MR-2 and LC with a C-O  Zoning: LC with a PUD Overlay 
Uses Allowed: 
SR-3 – Single-Dwelling Residential Allows detached 
houses, daycare centers up to 12 children, attached 
houses, duplexes, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, schools, and basic utilities 

MR-2 – Multi-Dwelling Residential Allows detached 
houses, attached houses, duplexes, multi-dwelling 
structures, daycare centers up to 12 children, group 
living, parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, schools, and basic utilities 
 
LC – Limited Commercial.  Allows colleges, community 
service, daycare centers of unlimited size, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, offices, off premise advertising signs, 
commercial parking, retail sales and service, self service 
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service. 

 Uses Allowed:  
LC – Limited Commercial.  Allows colleges, 
community service, daycare centers of unlimited 
size, health care facilities, parks and open space, 
religious institutions, safety services, offices, off 
premise advertising signs, commercial parking, retail 
sales and service, self service storage, vehicle 
repair, limited vehicle service. 

Maximum Density Allowed:  
SR-3: 8.7 dwelling units per acre 
MR-2:  20 dwelling units per acre 
LC: Maximum 55% building coverage 

 

Maximum Density Allowed:  
LC: Maximum 55% building coverage 
 
 
 

 
 
Proposal 
The applicant is seeking approval of 1) a zoning change from SR-3, Single-Dwelling Residential, MR-2, Multi-
Dwelling Residential, and LC, Limited Commercial with a C-O, Conditional Overlay to LC, Limited Commercial with 
a PUD, Planned Unit Development overlay, 2) a PUD Master Land Use Plan, and 3) a Growth Plan Amendment. 
The subject property is located at 1128, 1132, and 1136 14th Street North; 1404 12th Avenue North and 
encompasses approximately 0.8 acres 
 
The purpose of the application is to allow for the redevelopment of the subject property into a new mixed-use multi-
dwelling structure that would include commercial space (a credit union) along 12th Avenue N. The proposed 

ANelson
Text Box
Note: This staff report and the subsequent information and comments are from the February 2, 2016 Planning Commission meeting packet. This material is included as an attachment to Items 5a, 5b, & 5c, for informational purposes, as noted within the staff report.



development would consist of a four-story, 72-unit structure, including eighteen (18) studios, forty (40) 1-bedroom, 
and fourteen (14) 2 and 3 bedroom units. The ground level floor of the structure would be separated by a drive-
through for the credit union, while floors 2, 3 and 4 would be connected. The structure would include four (4) ground 
level parking spaces and seventy-two (72) underground parking spaces, with access to the underground parking off 
of Barrett Street. 
 
The applicant has applied for a PUD overlay in order to tailor development standards to the specifics of the 
proposed project. Specifically, the following modifications to the underlying LC zoning district are being proposed: 

 Allowed Uses: The allowable uses would be modified to allow Household Living. Household Living is a 
conditional use in the LC zoning district. While the underlying LC zoning district does not have a maximum 
residential density, the applicant is proposing up to 72 dwelling units, which would equate to a maximum 
residential density of 90 units per acre.  

 Setbacks: The need for modification of the LC setback requirements is dependent upon which side of the 
subject property is designated as the “front.” If the north side of the property were to be designated as the 
front, then no modifications would be needed. If, however, the east side of the property were to be 
designated as the front, then the modification would be needed for the front (east) and rear (west) of the 
property. The rear setback would need to be modified from 15 feet to 10 feet, and the front setback 
averaging provisions of Section 20-0504.D would need to be waived. 

 Height: The LC zoning district restricts building height to a maximum of 35 feet for properties within 300 
feet of an SR zoning district or for properties subject to residential protection standards (otherwise the 
maximum height is 60 feet). The applicant has proposed to modify this height restriction from 35 feet to 45 
feet. 

 Parking: Within the LC zoning district, 72 dwelling units and a 3,000 square-foot bank would require 161 
off-street parking spaces to be provided on-site. The standard parking requirements are broken down as 
follows: 

o 18 efficiency units @ 1.5 spaces per unit = 27 spaces 
o 54 bedroomed units @ 2.25 spaces per unit = 121.5 spaces 
o 3,000 ft2 bank @ 1 space per 250 ft2 = 12 spaces 

The applicant is proposing a modification to these parking requirement in order to reduce the required 
number of on-site parking stall from 161 to 76, which is a reduction of 85 on-site parking stalls. In addition 
to providing 76 parking stall on-site (72 underground and 4 at grade), the applicant is currently working 
with NDSU in order to secure 30-40 off-site parking stalls in NDSU’s adjacent “T-Lot” parking lot, which is 
located on the west side of Barrett Street N. If these off-site parking stalls can be secured, the applicant 
would be able to provide a total of 106-116 parking stalls (on- and off-site), which would be a reduction of 
55-45 total parking stalls. 
 

The applicant has submitted a project narrative and draft PUD Master Land Use Plan which further describes the 
proposed development. These two documents are attached. 
 
In addition to the zoning map amendment and PUD Master Land Use Plan, the applicant has applied for a growth 
plan amendment in order to modify the Roosevelt-NDSU Future Land Use Map which is contained within a 2009 
update to the 2004 Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood Plan. The proposed amendment is intended to show an 
increase the proposed future land use of Primarily Residential with Commercial and a corresponding decrease in 
the proposed future land use of Low Density Residential.  

 
 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses Include: 

 North: Across 12th Avenue North is P/I, Public and Institutional with the NDSU campus;  
 East: Across 14th Street North is MR-3 and MR-2, Multi Dwelling Residential, with group living and 

detached housing; 
 South: MR-2 with detached housing; 
 West: UMU, University Mixed-Use and P/I with mixed-use apartments/retail sales and services and a 

parking lot. 
 



Area Plans  
The subject property is located within the Roosevelt-NDSU 
Neighborhood. The Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood Plan was adopted in 
2004, and was geared towards addressed escalating problems of parking, 
over-occupancy, loud parties, housing transitions from owner-occupancy 
to renter-occupancy, and general disrepair of property.  
 
One goal outlined in the plan is to stabilize the neighborhood’s housing 
stock. Within this goal, the plan notes strategies that encourage a 
balanced mix of quality housing.  
 
A Future Land Use Plan for the Roosevelt-NDSU Neighborhood (adopted 
in late 2009 as an addendum to the 2004 Neighborhood Plan) was 
created to provide a framework for development and to provide guidance 
in decision making for home-owners, landlords, 
and developers. The future land use plan identifies 
the subject property as being located on the 
boundary between two distinct future land-use 
classifications: Primarily Residential with 
Commercial and Low Density Residential. 
Although the Future Land-Use Plan is intended to 
act as a general guideline for development 
patterns and is not intended to act as ridged 
regulatory document, the applicant has requested 
an amendment to the Plan in order to shift this 
boundary to the south. The Growth Plan Amendment seeks to transition the low density residential land use into 
residential with commercial. 
Schools and Parks: 
 

Schools: The subject property is located within the Fargo School District, specifically within the Roosevelt 
Elementary, Ben Franklin Middle, and North High schools. 
 
Parks: The subject property is located within a tenth-mile of the Johnson Soccer Complex (1420 11th Avenue 
North), which provides amenities of trails, playgrounds, shelters, and athletic fields. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: An off-road bike facility is located along 12th Avenue North, and an on-road bike facility is 
located along Barrett St, both of which abut the subject property, and connect to the metro area trail system.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
Engineering and Planning staff have noted concern of the parking reduction request and traffic impact to the area. 
The intersection at 12th Avenue North and Barrett Street is a unique intersection which includes a traffic signal with 
the potential for  vehicle stacking. A traffic/parking impact study was noted as necessary to the applicant at an 
earlier predevelopment meeting. Because the PUD is asking for a reduction in required parking, justification is 
needed for the reduction. Staff has asked that the study also addresses the impacts of the proposed driveway 
locations. 
 
The Engineering Department has concerns with storm sewer capacity in this location. The only storm sewer in this 
area is located on 12th Avenue North, and was only designed to handle a two-year rain event at the time it was 
constructed. There is no storm sewer along Barrett Street or 14th Street North at this location. Accordingly, 
Engineering has concern with the potential for storm water from Barrett Street to flow into the access point to the 
underground parking for the structure. Engineering staff has indicated that because of the lack of storm water 
infrastructure in this area, a storm water model (modeling a 100-year rain event) would be required at the time of 
building permitting. Depending upon the results of this storm water model, potential storm water protection 
measures could impact the layout of the proposed site plan. In order to address this concern, the applicant has 
hired an engineering firm to model the storm water characteristics of this area. 

Proposed GPA 



 
Staff received comments from the City Forester regarding the need for a tree protection plan for the public street 
trees. The City Forester provided additional information on removal, pruning, and relocation street trees along 12th 
Avenue North and 14th Street South. Scott also noted concern with the relocation of some of the existing houses 
that could create a challenge for the street trees. This information was passed along to the applicant. 
 
Thanks to an active and organized Roosevelt Neighborhood Association and a willingness on behalf of the 
applicant, staff was able to facilitate an open-house meeting at which the applicant was able to discuss the 
proposed development, answer questions, and hear comment from residents of the neighborhood. The applicant 
noted that they recognized the fact that the proposal would not be completely supported by the neighborhood, but 
that they were looking for input from the neighborhood regarding building materials and colors.  The open-house 
took place on January 21st and was well attended by over 20 citizens, many of which voiced concerns with the 
applicant’s proposal. Comments from the neighborhood included concern with building setbacks and height not 
matching the neighborhood character, lack of parking, the potential for high density residential in contrast to the 
existing low density, and the demolition of buildings of historic interest. Residents also had concern with students 
partying and parking in the neighborhood, including along Barrett Street. In addition to comments heard at the 
open-house, staff has received additional written comments and a petition with signatures against the applicant’s 
proposal. Written documents received so far are attached. It should also be noted that the applicant has made 
some changes to the proposed development after hearing comments at the open-house. Originally, the proposed 
development had no setback along Barrett Street and was proposed to be 10 feet from the south property line. The 
applicant has since shifted the building east to provide at least a 10-foot setback from Barrett Street and has 
provided a 15-foot setback from the south property line. 
 
 
 
Zoning  
Section 20-906. F (1-4) of the LDC stipulates the following criteria be met before a zone change can be approved: 
 

1. Is the requested zoning change justified by a change in conditions since the previous zoning classification 
was established or by an error in the zoning map?  
 

2. Are the City and other agencies able to provide the necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development allowed by the new zoning classifications at the time the property is developed?  

 
3. Will the approval of the zoning change adversely affect the condition or value of the property in the vicinity?  

 
4. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the purpose of this LDC, the Growth Plan, and other adopted 

policies of the City?   
 
 

Master Land Use Plan: The LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission and Board of City Commissioners shall 
consider the following criteria in the review of any Master Land Use Plan.  
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict application of 
otherwise applicable base zoning district standards, based on the purpose and intent of this Land 
Development Code; 
 

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD standards of Section 20-0302; 
  

3. The City and other agencies will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and programs to 
serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed; 
 



4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in the 
Area Plan, Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents;  

 
5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development will 

promote the general welfare of the community.  
 

 
Growth Plan Evaluation Criteria: Section 20-0905(H) of the LDC states that the Planning Commission and City 
Commissioners shall consider whether the Growth Plan is consistent with and serves to implement adopted plans 
and policies of the city. 
 
The 2007 Growth Plan sets forth the following criteria that should be used to evaluate any proposed growth plan 
amendment: 
 

1. Is the proposed change consistent with surrounding land uses, both existing and future? The  
 

2. Does the proposed change involve a street alignment or connection?  If so, how does this change affect 
the transportation system and the land uses in the surrounding area, both existing and future.  
 

3. How does the proposed change work with the larger area in terms of land use balance and other factors 
that could influence the proposed change?  Are their physical features or developments in the vicinity that 
make the change positive or negative for the City and the area in general?  
 

4. How does the proposed change impact the long term sustainability of the city? Does the change contribute 
to or detract from the walkability and livability of the city?  

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
At this point, staff is bringing this item to Planning Commission for a public hearing in order to hear public 
comments and to allow preliminary discussion by the Planning Commission. At this time staff is recommending that 
this item be continued to the March Planning Commission meeting. It is staff’s intent to bring this item to the March 
Planning Commission meeting for a second public hearing and a recommendation from Planning Commission. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: February 2, 2016 
 

 



Subject Property

12 AVE N

11 AVE N

14 S
T N U

N
IV

E
R

SITY
 D

R
 N

C
O

LLE
G

E
 S

T N

15 S
T N

BO
LLE

Y
 D

R
 N

ALB
R

E
C

H
T B

LVD
 N

ADMINISTRATION AVE N

BA
R

R
E

TT ST N ¯
Fargo Planning Commission

February 2, 2016

Growth Plan Amendment, Zone Change 
(SR-3, MR-2 & LC w/ C-O to LC) & PUD 

Kirkham's Second Addition                      1404 12th Ave N;
1128, 1132 & 1136 14th St N 



Subject Property

11 AVE N

12 AVE N

14 S
T N

C
O

LLE
G

E
 S

T N

15 S
T N

BO
LLE

Y
 D

R
 N

ALB
R

E
C

H
T B

LVD
 N

BA
R

R
E

TT ST N ¯
Fargo Planning Commission

February 2, 2016

Growth Plan Amendment, Zone Change 
(SR-3, MR-2 & LC w/ C-O to LC) & PUD 

Kirkham's Second Addition                      1404 12th Ave N;
1128, 1132 & 1136 14th St N 





 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 
DATE:       January 27, 2016 
 
FROM:      Planning Commission 
 
FROM:      Aaron Nelson, Planner 
       Maegin Rude, Planner 
 
RE:             Kirkham’s Second Addition – supplemental attachments list 
 

 
 
 
 
PUD Narrative                    2 Pages 
 
PUD Master Plan                   1 Page 
     
PUD Floor Plans (conceptual plans)               3 Pages 
 
Comments received (as of January 27, 2016)           48 Pages 
 
Neighborhood Meeting attendance sheet, January 21         2 Pages 
 
Packet distributed by the Applicant at January 21 Neighborhood Meeting     10 Pages 















1

Aaron Nelson

From: Jasmine Markusen
Sent: Monday, January 25, 2016 8:33 AM
To: Aaron Nelson; Derrick LaPoint; Maegin Rude
Subject: FW: Comment Sheet:  Neighborhood Meeting - January 21, 2016

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
 

From: Natasha Neihart [mailto:neihartteam@cableone.net]  
Sent: Saturday, January 23, 2016 11:29 AM 
To: Commission E‐mail <Commission@cityoffargo.com>; Planning E‐mails <Planning@cityoffargo.com>; Nicole 
Crutchfield <ncrutchfield@cityoffargo.com> 
Subject: Comment Sheet: Neighborhood Meeting ‐ January 21, 2016 
 
Comment Sheet:  Neighborhood Meeting - January 21, 2016 

  
I believe that very project should demand a complete site plan before an application is 
accepted.  If the project does not meet the Land Development Code standards, the application 
should not be accepted by Planning.  Why does a short staffed Planning Department waste their time, the 
Planning Commission's, the City Commission's and the public's time with untenable ill-defined unreasonable 
projects?  For example the Kirkham Addition proposed zone change lacks adequate parking and set-backs; it exceeds 
density standards by 10-20 fold and the height standards by several folds also. 
 
1.  How can you justify a PUD proposed on the corner of 12th Avenue N and 14th Street N 
(Roosevelt neighborhood), based upon the following restrictions listed in your Land Development 
Code on page 168? 
 

 A PUD Final Plan shall be approved by the Planning Commission if it is determined 
by the 

Planning Commission to be in substantial compliance with the approved PUD Master Land 

Use Plan. The PUD Final Plan shall be deemed to be in substantial compliance with the 

PUD Master Land Use Plan so long as, when compared with the PUD Master Land Use 

Plan, it does not result in: 
a. An increase in project density or intensity, including the 

number of housing units per acre or the amount of 
nonresidential floor area per acre; 
b. A change in the mix of housing types or the amount of land 

area devoted to nonresidential uses; 
c. A reduction in the amount of open space; 
d. Any change to the vehicular system that results in a 

significant change in the amount or location of streets, 
common parking areas, and access to the PUD; 
e. Any change within SO feet of any SR or MR zoning district; 
f. Any change determined by the Planning Commission to 

represent an increase in development intensity; or 



2

g. A substantial change in the layout of buildings. 
 
2.  It seems that the other two projects (Rhett's Row Addition and Loucile's Addition) proposed also 
conflict with these same reasonable neighborhood protection guidelines. 
 
Any proposal should not result in: 
a. An increase in project density or intensity, including the 

number of housing units per acre or the amount of 
nonresidential floor area per acre; 
b. A change in the mix of housing types or the amount of land 

area devoted to nonresidential uses; 
c. A reduction in the amount of open space; 
d. Any change to the vehicular system that results in a 

significant change in the amount or location of streets, 
common parking areas, and access to the PUD; 
e. Any change within SO feet of any SR or MR zoning district; 
f. Any change determined by the Planning Commission to 

represent an increase in development intensity; or 

g. A substantial change in the layout of buildings. 
  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Natasha Neihart 
Fargo citizen 
 
 



Comment Sheet 
                                Neighborhood Meeting - January 21, 2016                          .                                       

  

Comments: 

I believe that every project should demand a complete site plan before an application is accepted.   If 
the project does not meet the Land Development Code standards, the application should not be 
accepted by Planning.   Why does a short staffed Planning Department waste their time, the 
Planning Commission's, the City Commission's and the public's time with untenable, ill-defined, and 
unreasonable projects that do not comply with existing city codes?  For example the Kirkham 
Addition proposed PUD zone change lacks adequate parking and setbacks; it exceeds density standards 
by 10-20 fold; it exceed the height standards by several fold, and it lacks a 50-foot buffer zone. 
 

How can you justify any one of the three proposed Roosevelt apartments based upon the 
following restrictions in your Land Development Code? 

a.  The proposed density greatly exceeds the current zoning and current land uses for the 
existing Kirkham, Rhett’s Row, and Loucille’s Additions. The suggested densities are 
inappropriate for these residential neighborhoods.  

 
b.  The massive size of the proposed buildings lack fifty-foot buffer zones to separate them 

from any of the adjacent Single Residence zones.   
 
d.  There are two places in the core of Fargo that have the worst traffic: NDSU environs and 

downtown Broadway.  From personal experience I know the NDSU T-lots in the vicinity of 
Roosevelt are highly congested and sometimes it is nearly impossible to find a spot.  
Since the T-lots are as far as 2.2 – 2.6 miles apart and it can take four to fifty minutes to 
travel from one on 12th Avenue N to one on 19th Avenue N (per Google Maps), it is 
insincere to not provide adequate parking on the proposed apartment/retail lots.  The 
Kirkham Addition PUD proposal of 72-75 more units represents 150 additional cars that 
will need parking spaces at all hours of the day.  How many more cars will be associated 
with the Rhett’s Row and the Loucille’s Additions that will directly impact the parking in 
the Roosevelt neighborhood? 

 
e.  Any setbacks should respect the existing residential setbacks.  Anything less is a 

substantial change in the layout of buildings.  A zero setback means a total disregard for 
the need of pedestrians to maneuver through the area safely, the realities of fire truck 
access and storm water runoff.   

 
f.  If it is known that illegal drug dealing is occurring in the Roosevelt neighborhood, as 

stated by the presenter at the meeting, it is a police matter that should be dealt with.  It 
is not a justification for tearing down a neighborhood and building a high-rise. Reference 
the Chicago high-rise fiasco for example.  

 
Currently the three Additions (Kirkham, Rhett's Row and Loucille's) have reasonable protection 
guidelines in place, try to work within your existing guidelines when considering any changes.  
Why do you make every issue so hard for yourselves and your citizens? 
 
Tom Neihart 
701 261-0397 





















































































































Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Item # 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Urban Plains Northeast Retail 
3rd Addition Date: 2/28/18 

Location: 
2720, 2740, 2760, and 2780 
47th Street South, 4680 28th 
Avenue South, and 2911 45th 
Street South 

Staff Contact: Kylie Bagley 

Legal Description: A portion of Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, Urban Pains Northeast Retail Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: Urban Plains Land Co., 
LLC/Clay Dietrich Engineer: Mead & Hunt 

Entitlements Requested: 
Conditional Use Permit to allow household living within the LC, Limited Commercial, 
Zoning District and a Minor Subdivision (Replat a portion of Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, 
Urban Pains Northeast Retail Addition to the City of Fargo, Cass County, North 
Dakota)  

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 6, 2018 

Existing Proposed 

Land Use: Vacant Land Use: Household Living 
Zoning: LC, Limited Commercial Zoning: No Change 
Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious 
institutions, safety services, offices, off premise 
advertising signs, commercial parking, retail sales 
and service, self-service storage, vehicle repair, 
limited vehicle service. 

Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, daycare 
centers of unlimited size, health care facilities, parks and 
open space, religious institutions, safety services, offices, 
off premise advertising signs, commercial parking, retail 
sales and service, self-service storage, vehicle repair, 
limited vehicle service. 

Plus a CUP to allow household living. 
Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: Maximum 55% 
building coverage 

Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: No Change 

Proposal: 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow household living within the LC, Limited Commercial, 
Zoning District and a Minor Subdivision, entitled Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition. The minor 
subdivision will replat a portion of Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, Urban Plains Northeast Retail Addition, and are located at 
2720, 2740, 2760, and 2780 47th Street South, 4680 28th Avenue South, and 2911 45th Street South. The subject 
property encompasses approximately 8.74 acres. According to the applicant, the purpose of the CUP is to allow for 
the construction of an apartment complex on the subject property on the propose Lot 1, Block 1 Urban Plains 
Northeast Retail 3rd Addition. 

This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 
 North: LC, Limited Commercial with office and vacant land uses
 East: Across 45th Street South; LC, Limited Commercial with vacant land use
 South: Adjacent to the subject properties, across Brandt Drive South, and across 28th Avenue South;

LC, Limited Commercial with office, retail sales and service, financial services, vacant land, and
household living, multi-dwelling structure

 West: Across 47th Street South and 28th Avenue South; LC, Limited Commercial with office and

6a & 6b



Page 2 of 4 
 

household living, multi-dwelling structure use 
 

Area Plans: 
 

The subject properties are located within the bounds of the 2003 Southwest Future Land Use Plan.  This plan 
identifies “Commercial” use as preferred land uses for this area. 

 

Schools and Parks: 
 

Schools: The subject properties are located within the West Fargo School District and is served by Freedom 
Elementary, Liberty Middle and Sheyenne High schools. 
 
Neighborhood:  The subject properties are located in the Urban Plains Neighborhood. 
 
Parks:  Anderson Softball Complex (2424 45th Street S) is located approximately 750 feet northeast of the subject 
property and offers the amenities of baseball/softball fields, concessions, picnic tables, playground, restrooms, and 
shelter.   
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: There are off-street bike facilities located along 45th Street South, Brandt Drive South, and 
28th Avenue South. All facilities are components of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 

 
Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria (Section 20-0909.D) 

 

The following is a list of criteria that must be determined satisfied in order for a Conditional Use Permit to be 
approved: 

 
 Does the proposed conditional use comply with all applicable provisions of the LDC and will it 

conform to the general intent and purpose of this LDC? 
The purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive Plan in a way that will protect the general 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens. Staff believes this proposal is in keeping with adopted plans and 
policies of the City. The CUP is intended to allow for high density residential land use within the Urban 
Plains development, which is intended to be a mixed-use, walkable center. The proposed CUP would allow 
for both residential and commercial development of this property. Staff finds this proposal is consistent with 
the purpose of the LDC, the Go2030 Comprehensive Plan, and other adopted policies of the City.  
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 Will the proposed conditional use at the specified location contribute to and promote the welfare or 

convenience of the public? 
Staff suggests that this proposed conditional use permit to allow for residential dwellings to be located 
within this area will contribute to and promote the welfare of the public. The proximity of the subject property 
to existing businesses, jobs, and amenities provides an opportunity for residents to live and work within 
close proximity, reducing the need to commute via automobile. Staff finds that the proposed conditional use 
permit at this location will contribute to and promote the welfare of the public.   
(Criteria Satisfied)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

 
 Will the proposed conditional use cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 

neighborhood in which it is to be located? 
Staff has no data to suggest that the proposed use would cause substantial injury to the value of other 
property in the neighborhood. In accordance with Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed 
use and Alternative Access Plan were sent out to property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. 
To date, staff has received no protest regarding the proposed use.   
(Criteria Satisfied)  

 
 Is the location and size of the conditional use, the nature and intensity of the operation conducted 

in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it such that 
the conditional use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent the 
development and use of the neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations?  In considering this criteria, location, nature, and height of buildings, structures, walls, 
and fences on the site are to be considered, as well as the nature and extent of proposed 
landscaping and buffering on the site. 
Staff suggests that the proposed conditional use permit to allow household living should not dominate the 
immediate neighborhood or prevent any other sites from being used due to the fact that 1) there are 
existing residential land uses within the Urban Plains area and 2) the proposed conditions of the CUP seek 
to preserve open space and to provide for efficient connectivity for both people and vehicles in relation to 
surrounding properties. Based on this information, staff finds that the proposed conditional use permit 
meets this criterion.   
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
 Are adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services provided or will they 

be at the time of development? 
The subject properties are located within an area of the City that is largely developed with public 
infrastructure. Staff is not aware of any deficiencies regarding drainage or utilities that would limit the ability 
of the petitioner to utilize the property as proposed. In addition, the requested CUP has been reviewed by 
staff from other applicable departments and no concerns have been raised. Based on this information, staff 
finds that adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services are in place.   
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
 Have adequate access roads or entrances and exit drives been provided and are they designed to 

prevent traffic hazards and to minimize traffic congestion in public streets? 
The subject property has vehicular access to 28th Avenue South and 47th Street South. There is also 
underutilized capacity for on-street parking on these adjacent streets. Additionally, the proposed mix of 
commercial and residential uses reduces the dependency on vehicular transportation for residents of the 
development. Staff suggests that the proposed conditional use will not create traffic hazards or traffic 
congestion in the public streets.   
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Recommended Conditions: 

 The maximum residential density shall be that of the MR-3 zoning district (24 units per acre). 
 A minimum of 35% of the lot shall remain as open space. 
 Parking lot approaches must be spaced at least 100 feet away from the roundabouts located on Brandt 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Drive South, as measured along the existing public access easements beginning at the Brandt Drive South 
right-of-way and ending at the centerline of such parking lot approach.  

 
Minor Subdivision 
The LDC stipulates that the following criteria is met before a minor plat can be approved: 
 

 Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend approval or 
denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  Section 20-
0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it 
is located in a zoning district that allows the proposed development and complies with the adopted 
Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  
The subdivision is intended to replat a portion of Lots 3 and 4, Block 1, Urban Pains Northeast Retail 
Addition into two lots and one block to accommodate future development. In accordance with Section 20-
0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property owners within 300 feet of 
the subject property. To date, staff has not received any inquiries. Staff has reviewed this request and finds 
that this application complies with standards of Article 20-06 and all applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 
 

 Section 20-907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of City 
Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public improvements to serve 
the subdivision. 
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it is 
important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and proposed) are 
subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of the public infrastructure 
improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and storm sewer by the square footage 
basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment principles. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
 

Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and move to recommend approval to the 
City Commission of the proposed: 1) Subdivision Plat, Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition as outlined 
within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of Article 20-06, and all 
other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code and 2) Conditional Use Permit to allow for an 
Alternative Access Plan  as the proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D (1-6) and all other requirements of the 
LDC, with the following conditions: 

 The maximum residential density shall be that of the MR-3 zoning district (24 units per acre). 
 A minimum of 35% of the lot shall remain as open space. 
 Parking lot approaches must be spaced at least 100 feet away from the roundabouts located on Brandt 

Drive South, as measured along the existing public access easements beginning at the Brand Drive South 
right-of-way and ending at the centerline of such parking lot approach.  

 

Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
4. Preliminary Site Plan 
 

 



Subject Property

CALICO DR S

26 AVE S

31 AVE S

45 S
T S

28 AVE S

FR
O

N
TIER

W
AY

SBRANDT DR S

30 AVE S

URB
AN

PLAINS DR S

47
ST

S

49 ST S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Plat (Minor) & CUP (Household Living in LC)
Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition

300
Feet

2720, 2740, 2760 & 2780 
47th St S & 4680 28th Ave S

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AG
DMUGC
GO

LC

MR-2
MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

49 ST S

CALICO DR S

26 AVE S

31 AVE S

45 S
T S

28 AVE S

FR
O

N
TIER

W
AY

SBRANDT DR S

30 AVE S

URB
AN

PLAINS DR S

47
ST

S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Plat (Minor) & CUP (Household Living in LC)
Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition

300
Feet

2720, 2740, 2760 & 2780 
47th St S & 4680 28th Ave S





P.O.B.

EXISTING
24'

ACCESSEASEMENT
(Doc.1410002)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
24

'
AC

C
ES

S
EA

SE
M

EN
T

(D
oc

.1
17

79
01

)

EXISTING
10'

UTILITYEASEMENT
(Doc.1177901)

EXIS
TI

NG
10

'
UTI

LIT
Y

EASEMENT
(D

oc
.11

77
90

1)

EXIS
TIN

G
10

'
LA

NDSCAPE

EASEMENT
(D

oc
.11

77
90

1)

EXISTING18'
UTILITYEASEMENT

(Doc.1285137)

80'
R/W

80'R/W

80
'

R/W

80
'

R/W

L1 / B1
312,856 SF

LOT 2
68,111 SF

1
PAGE:

IS
 A

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

S 
F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

 A
C

T
.

W
O

R
K

 O
F

 T
H

E
 P

L
A

N
 (

S)
 F

U
R

N
IS

H
E

D
 B

Y
 D

IE
T

R
IC

H
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 L

L
C

.
A

N
Y

 U
SE

, R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
, C

O
P

Y
IN

G
, M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

, O
R

 D
E

R
IV

A
T

IV
E

A
T

T
E

N
T

IO
N

.

REVISIONS:

PAGE:

.
SQ. FT.

M.A.M.
SALESMAN:

 PROJ. TIME:

START DATE:

PROJECT:

DRAWN BY:

FILE:
APART

.

M.A.M.

.

.

M
E

Z
Z

O
 A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S
D

IS
C

L
A

IM
E

R
 O

F
 W

A
R

R
A

N
T

IE
S

P
la

n
s 

fu
rn

is
h
ed

 b
y
 D

IE
T

R
IC

H
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
L

L
C

 /
 D

IE
T

R
IC

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 I
N

C
. 
w

er
e

p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y
 C

A
D

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

s 
w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

q
u
al

if
ie

d
 a

s 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 a
rc

h
it

ec
ts

 o
r 

en
g
in

ee
rs

.

D
IE

T
R

IC
H

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 
L

L
C

 /
 D

IE
T

R
IC

H
 H

O
M

E
S

 I
N

C
. 
ex

p
re

ss
ly

 d
is

cl
ai

m
s

an
y

 l
ia

b
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
th

e 
er

ro
rs

 o
n

 t
h

es
e 

p
la

n
s 

an
d

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s 

d
o

n
e 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
d

ir
ec

t 

su
p

er
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
d

u
ly

 R
eg

is
te

re
d

 A
rc

h
it

ec
t 

an
d

 d
u

ly
 R

eg
is

te
re

d
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 E
n

g
in

ee
rs

 

w
h
o
se

 s
ta

m
p
s,

 l
ic

en
se

 n
u
m

b
er

s,
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
at

u
re

s 
ap

p
ea

r 
o
n
 t

h
es

e 
p
la

n
s.

  
R

es
p
o
n
si

b
il

it
y
 f

o
r

th
e 

u
sa

g
e 

o
f 

th
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

st
ru

ct
u

ra
l 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

sp
an

s,
 l

o
ad

 b
ea

ri
n

g
, 

an
d

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 m
et

h
o

d
s

ar
e 

th
e 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
il

it
y
 o

f 
th

e 
b
u
il

d
er

, 
o
w

n
er

, 
o
r 

u
se

r 
o
f 

th
es

e 
p
la

n
s.

.

171.58'

25
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

37
'-0

"

18'-6"

14'-0"

4'-0"

28
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

24
'-0

"

25,661 S.F.

9722 S.F.

14,080 S.F.

30
'-0

"

29'-8"

25'-4"

28'-6"

32
'-1

1"

30
'-0

"

30'-0"

69,137 S.F.

11,094 S.F.

28
'-0

"

22
'-0

"

22
'-0

"

22
'-0

"

22'-0"

11
'-0

"

11
'-0

"

328'-0"

31,811

102'-0"

5'
-0

"

24
'-0

"

50'-0"

R25'-0"

39'-6"

30'-0"

30'-0"

23,157 S.F.

8.07'

26.86'

34
1.

34
'

36
9.

29
'

547.86'

442.57'

11
6.

23
'

44
6.

69
'

21
'-1

0"

11
'-1

0"
15

'-4
"

49
'-0

"

308'-0"

42'-6"

24'-6"
4'-0"

14'-0"

49
'-0

"

316'-4"

165'-4"

35
'-6

"

3'-
0"

16
'-1

1"

19
'-7

"

38
'-2

"

15
5°

64 UNIT BLDG

HEATED GARAGE

6'-0"

29,627 S.F.
HEATED GARAGE

49'-0"

30
'-0

"

49
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

58 UNIT BLDG

49'-0"

28'-0"

27
5'

-0
"

22
'-0

"

30'-0"

CITY OF FARGO, ND
SCALE:  1" = 50'-0"

LOT 1 / BLOCK 1

MEZZO APARTMENTS:

21,000 MAX SF ALLOWED
12,000 X .75 = 9,000 + 12,000 = 
.75 = [ 762/762 - 0.25 ]  30/30
If = [ F/P - 0.25 ] W/30
TOTAL 64 PLEX = 25,661 SF
AREA INCREASE

TOTAL:                     268

PARKING SPACES: 

GARAGES: 74 (2 STALL) X 2 = 148

114 UNITS X 2.25 (REQUIRED SPACES) = 257
TOTAL UNITS:
PARKING

TOTAL 58 PLEX = 23,157 SF 

.75 = [ 848/848 - 0.25 ]  30/30
12,000 X .75 = 9,000 + 12,000 = 
21,000 MAX SF ALLOWED

8 EFF. UNITS X 1.25 (REQUIRED SPACES) = 10
REQUIRED SPACES: 267

GARAGES: 71 (1 STALL) = 71

BUILDINGS & UNITS
64 PLEX

1 - BEDROOMS = 22
2 - BEDROOMS = 26
3 - BEDRROMS = 12

TOTAL UNITS:

1 - BEDROOMS = 44
2 - BEDROOMS = 46
3 - BEDRROMS = 24

TOTAL:

EFF. BEDROOMS = 4

EFF. BEDROOMS = 8

122

DECIDUOUS

EVERGREEN

SHRUB

LANDSCAPE KEY

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

LARGE MATURE DECIDUOUS TREES:
LARGE MATURE EVERGREEN TREES:
MATURE SHRUBS:

.  X 10 =  .  UNITS

.  X 10 =  . UNITS
. X  1  =  . UNITS
. TOTAL UNITS

TOTAL UNITS NEEDED 3 PER 1000 SQFT.
312,856 SQFT.  X  3/1000   =   939 UNITS

If = [ F/P - 0.25 ] W/30

AREA INCREASE

If = [ F/P - 0.25 ] W/30

URBAN PLAINS NORTHEAST RETAIL THIRD ADDITION
10,841 S.F. (STREET TO PROP. LINE)

58 PLEX

1 - BEDROOMS = 22
2 - BEDROOMS = 20
3 - BEDRROMS = 12

EFF. BEDROOMS = 4

GARAGE UNITS:

STANDARD = 45
STANDARD ACCESSIBLE = 0
VAN ACCESSIBLE = 4

180 S.F.

18'-6"

53'-6"

30'-0"

18'-6"

9'
-0

"9
'-0

"9
'-0

"

9'-0"

9'-0"

9'-0"

30
'-0

"

18
'-6

"

4'-
0"

30'-0"

18'-6"

42
'-4

"

50
'-0

"

DUMPSTER

8'-0"

10
'-0

" GATED FENCE

DUMPSTER
GATED FENCE

8'
-0

" 10'-0"

20'-0"

14'-0"

79'-0"

6'-0"

223'-0"

14
'-0

"

7'
-1

0"

VAN ACCESSIBLE 
WITH SIGNAGE
1:12 RAMP W/
1:10 FLARES

VAN ACCESSIBLE 
WITH SIGNAGE
1:12 RAMP W/
1:10 FLARES

30'-0"



1

Kylene Bagley

From: Mark Buchholz <mdbuchholz@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2018 8:16 PM
To: Kylene Bagley
Cc: dalebrucebuchholz@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Meeting

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they 
are safe. 

Kylene, 
 
I am writing you in regards to my concerns (not only as a property owner, but also as a citizen and tax payer of 
the Fargo Moorhead area) regarding to another conditional use request (basically a re zoning wrapped 
differently) in urban plains.  We own and developed the first apartments in Urban Plains.  At the time it was 
“supposed” to be a maximum 200 units per the developer.  I completely understand the developer took the risk, 
needs to respond to the market, and has financial goals with a development.  I want to be clear, I am no way 
writing this for concern of competition as I believe competition is great for our city.  There has been several 
projects prior to this that the goal line has moved and I chose not to bother the city with my 
comments.  However, now I feel enough is enough.  If you simply refer to the city of Fargo’s own growth plan 
they have determined per studies that a range of housing choices within a development has lead to healthier and 
more successful overall developments.  There have been several areas in the past that Fargo has allowed for 
large “clusters” of multi family units.  This has always proved to be a negative for the city.  In terms of quality 
of housing, overall maintenance, traffic control, and emergency services such as police, fire department, etc... In 
my conversation with planning I predicted that you will not hear a lot of negative feedback in this particular 
situation.  Is there not any opposition? Or other factors? I feel it is important to point out that the developer has 
either employed other property owners or partnered on projects on almost every single project since ours in the 
development (less a few smaller commercial projects). This would include the proposed site future project that 
will be proposed.  Other owners will not have an unbiased mindset because they are partners at some level.  I 
have watched this development over the years and am saddened by what has happened.  Now that I am hoping 
and imploring the city to use some common sense and oppose this conditional use request (re zoning 
request).  At this point as multi family vacancy is at record highs I believe this is the time to stand for what has 
worked for the city (clearly there is not an under supply issue).  I also believe we should have serious concerns 
about the maintenance of properties and overall developments due to the stress of high vacancy and incentives 
on the financial health of projects.  Finally if approved, I believe this would set a dangerous precedent moving 
forward and puts the city in a precarious position.  Thank you for hearing my concerns.  I know overall 
development is good for the city, but the city has done an amazing job of “growing smarter” rather than just 
growing.  Let’s get this one right and set a precedent to continue growing smart in the future.   
 
Mark Buchholz  
701-371-1646 

On Feb 28, 2018, at 4:44 PM, Kylene Bagley <kbagley@FargoND.gov> wrote: 

Mark, 
 
I will send you a copy once it has been emailed to the commissioners. The Planning Department 
is supporting the Conditional Use Permit for residential housing. 



Item #  7 

 
City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition Date: 2-28-2018 

Location: 
5301 and 5353 51st Avenue 
South Staff Contact: Maegin Elshaug 

Owner(s)/Applicant: FLO, LLC/Don Dabbert Jr. Engineer: N/A 

Reason for Request: 

Conditional Use Permit for Warehouse, Wholesale sales, Manufacturing and 
Production, and Industrial Services in the GC, General Commercial zoning district on 
Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition. 

Status: Planning Commission hearing March 6, 2018 
 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Vacant  Land Use: Warehouse, Wholesale Sales, Manufacturing 

and Production, and Industrial Services 
Zoning:  GC, General Commercial with a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP)  

 Zoning:  GC, General Commercial with a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) 

Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, detention 
facilities, health care facilities, parks and open 
space, religious institutions, safety services, adult 
entertainment centers, offices, off-premise 
advertising, commercial parking, outdoor recreation 
and entertainment, retail sales and service, self-
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
aviation, surface transportation, and major 
entertainment events 
 
Existing CUP for industrial services and  
manufacturing and production uses. 

 Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, daycare 
centers of unlimited size, detention facilities, health care 
facilities, parks and open space, religious institutions, 
safety services, adult entertainment centers, offices, off-
premise advertising, commercial parking, outdoor 
recreation and entertainment, retail sales and service, 
self-storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
aviation, surface transportation, and major entertainment 
events 
 
Plus CUP to allow for warehouse, wholesale sales, 
manufacturing and production, and industrial 
services uses. 
 

Maximum Building Coverage Allowed:  Maximum 
85% building coverage 

 Maximum Building Coverage Allowed: Maximum 85% 
building coverage 

 
 
Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow Warehouse, Wholesale sales, 
Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial Service uses in a GC, General Commercial, zoning district on Lots 1 
& 2, Block 1, Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition. The subject property is located at 5301 and 5353 51st Avenue 
South and encompasses approximately 1.9 acres. The applicant is requesting the CUP in order to allow industrial 
uses in the future.   
 
In 2014, the Planning Commission approved a CUP for Industrial Services and Manufacturing and Production. The 
property has not been developed and has since been sold. The original application received in January of 2018 
included the uses of Warehouse and Wholesale Sales. The applicant amended the application to include all four 
industrial uses on one CUP; Warehouse, Wholesale sales, Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial Services 
with the intent that if the application is approved, the new CUP will replace the previously approved CUP. If the 
Planning Commission denies the application, the approved 2014 CUP for Industrial Services and Manufacturing 
and Production will remain.  



 
Upon development of the property for industrial uses, the standards of Section 20-0402.R Industrial Uses in 
General Commercial Zoning will apply to the site. It is typical for staff to coordinate details of the site plan at the 
time of these applications, as the standards in Section 20-0402.R often impact the layout of the site.  The 
preliminary plan submitted by the applicant appears to not meet several of the standards of Section 20-0402.R. At 
this time, staff and the applicant have not been able to coordinate and staff has not received an updated site plan 
that addresses the requirements. It has been communicated to the applicant that Section 20-0402.R and any 
approved conditions of the CUP will need to be addressed at the time of site plan permit review.  
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses Include: 

 North: P/I, Public and Institutional with park and stormwater infrastructure use; 
 East: Across 53rd Street South; GC, General Commercial with CUP with warehouse and office uses; 
 South: Across 51st Avenue South; GC, General Commercial with CUP with warehouse, office, and retail 

sales and service uses; 
 West: GC, General Commercial, with warehouse and office uses. 

 
Area Plans: 
The subject properties are 
located within the bounds of the 
2003 Southwest Future Land 
Use Plan which designates this 
area as suitable for 
Medium/High Density 
Residential, Commercial, and 
Storm Water land uses. 
 
   
 

Schools and Parks: 
 
Schools: The subject properties are located within the West Fargo School District and are served by the 
Independence Elementary, Liberty Middle and Sheyenne High schools. 
 
Neighborhood: The subject properties are located within the bounds of the Osgood Neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Veteran’s Park (4951 53rd Street S) abuts the property to the north.   
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: An off-road bike facility is located directly north of the subject properties and is a component 
of the metro area bikeways system. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
 

Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria (Section 20-0909.D) 
 

The following is a list of criteria that must be determined satisfied in order for a Conditional Use Permit to be 
approved: 



 
1. Does the proposed conditional use comply with all applicable provisions of the LDC and will it 

conform to the general intent and purpose of this LDC?  
According to Section 20-0104 of the LDC, the purpose of the LDC is to implement Fargo’s Comprehensive 
Plan and related policies in a manner that protects the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
Fargo. The proposed Conditional Use Permit includes conditions that are intended to address and mitigate, 
to the extent practical, the potential negative impact on future residential land-uses to the north and west. 
Therefore, staff finds that the proposal is consistent with the purpose of the LDC. (Criteria Satisfied) 
 

2. Will the proposed conditional use at the specified location contribute to and promote the welfare or 
convenience of the public?  
Staff believes that the location of the proposed conditional use will contribute and promote the welfare and 
convenience of the public. Staff is proposing conditions which would address the negative impacts of the 
proposed uses but that also allow the neighborhood to utilize the convenience of these businesses.  
(Criteria Satisfied)                                                                                                                                              

 
3. Will the proposed conditional use cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the 

neighborhood in which it is to be located? 
Staff has no reason to believe the proposed use will cause injury to the value of other property in the 
vicinity. In accordance with the notification requirements of the City, notice of the proposal was sent to 
surrounding property owners as well as published in the Forum newspaper. To date, one inquiry has been 
received regarding the application with no noted concern. In addition, staff believes that the conditions 
outlined with the Conditional Use Permit further ensure that the industrial uses use will not negatively affect 
the value of the surrounding property over the long term. (Criteria Satisfied)  

 
4. Is the location and size of the conditional use, the nature and intensity of the operation conducted 

in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it such that 
the conditional use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent the 
development and use of the neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district 
regulations?  In considering this criteria, location, nature, and height of buildings, structures, walls, 
and fences on the site are to be considered, as well as the nature and extent of proposed 
landscaping and buffering on the site.  
Staff does not believe that the location, size, nature or intensity of the use will prevent development and 
use of neighboring property in accordance with applicable zoning districts. The proposed uses are 
consistent with the adjacent commercial properties that have been granted similar Conditional Use Permits 
over the past several years. In addition to the proposed CUP conditions, use-specific standards of LDC 
Section 20-0402.R apply to industrial uses in the GC zoning district and provide for additional protection of 
the surrounding area. (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
5. Are adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and services provided or will they 

be at the time of development?  
The subject property has access to all necessary utilities and services. Staff is not aware of any 
deficiencies regarding drainage or utilities that would limit the ability to utilize the property as proposed. 
Based on this information staff finds that adequate utility, drainage, and other such necessary facilities and 
services are in place.  (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
6. Have adequate access roads or entrances and exit drives been provided and are they designed to 

prevent traffic hazards and to minimize traffic congestion in public streets?  
The commercial property has access to the public street system at 51rd Avenue South and 53 Street South 
that can adequately accommodate truck/commercial traffic. In addition, the Engineering Department has 
had an opportunity to review the proposal and no comments or concerns have been forthcoming to indicate 
that there is a deficiency with the access roads or entrances and exit drives. To that end, staff finds that the 
proposed conditional use will not create traffic hazards or traffic congestion in the public streets.  
(Criteria Satisfied) 

  



Recommended Conditions: 
 

1) The property shall not be used in whole or in part for storage of rubbish or debris of any kind whatsoever 
nor for the storage of any property or items that will cause such lot to appear untidy, unclean or unsightly as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator; nor shall any substance, item or material be kept on any lot that 
will emit foul odors, including compost sites and fertilizer. All garbage containers, including dumpsters, shall 
be concealed from public view by fence, screen wall or building extension. 
 

2) No outdoor storage of equipment or supplies. 
 

3) Off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation areas (including circulation areas internal to storage 
yards) shall have an all-weather surface, as defined by the LDC.  
 

4) The manufacturing, production, or processing of food and/or animal products shall not be permitted. 
 

5) The manufacturing, production, or processing of hazardous chemicals or materials shall not be permitted. 
 

6) A vegetative buffer shall be provided along the north property boundary if truck docks are present for the 
purposes of protecting residential development from more intense land-uses and providing visual 
screening.  The vegetative buffer shall consist of two rows of plantings: one row of shrubs having a mature 
height of at least 6 feet, planted with a spacing of 8 feet, and one row of trees of varying species with a 
mature height ranging between 15-25 feet, planted with a spacing of 20 feet. The trees shall have mature 
heights of staggering altitude. These plantings shall be in addition to plantings required by Sections 20-
0402.R and 20-0705. 
 

7) Any expansion of industrial uses shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit with review and 
approval by the Planning Commission.  
 

8) The Conditional Use Permit shall terminate if all industrial uses cease for a period of more than 12 
consecutive months. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby move to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit to allow for Warehouse, Wholesale Sales, Manufacturing and Production, and Industrial 
Services in the GC, General Commercial as the proposal complies with Section 20-0909.D (1-6) and all other 
requirements of the LDC, with the following conditions: 
 

1) The property shall not be used in whole or in part for storage of rubbish or debris of any kind whatsoever 
nor for the storage of any property or items that will cause such lot to appear untidy, unclean or unsightly as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator; nor shall any substance, item or material be kept on any lot that 
will emit foul odors, including compost sites and fertilizer. All garbage containers, including dumpsters, shall 
be concealed from public view by fence, screen wall or building extension. 
 

2) No outdoor storage of equipment or supplies. 
 

3) Off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation areas (including circulation areas internal to storage 
yards) shall have an all-weather surface, as defined by the LDC.  
 

4) The manufacturing, production, or processing of food and/or animal products shall not be permitted. 
 

5) The manufacturing, production, or processing of hazardous chemicals or materials shall not be permitted. 
 

6) A vegetative buffer shall be provided along the north property boundary if truck docks are present for the 
purposes of protecting residential development from more intense land-uses and providing visual 
screening.  The vegetative buffer shall consist of two rows of plantings: one row of shrubs having a mature 



height of at least 6 feet, planted with a spacing of 8 feet, and one row of trees of varying species with a 
mature height ranging between 15-25 feet, planted with a spacing of 20 feet. The trees shall have mature 
heights of staggering altitude. These plantings shall be in addition to plantings required by Sections 20-
0402.R and 20-0705. 
 

7) Any expansion of industrial uses shall require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit with review and 
approval by the Planning Commission.  
 

8) The Conditional Use Permit shall terminate if all industrial uses cease for a period of more than 12 
consecutive months. 

 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Site Plan 
 

 



Subject Property

53 S
T S

51 AVE S

51 S
T S

50 AVE S

55
ST

S

52 AVE S

48 AVE S

52
S

T
S

53 AVE S

VE
TE

R
A

N
S BLV

D
 S

54 S
T S

49 AVE S

56 ST S
HARVEST

DR S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

CUP (Wholesale Sales, Manufacturing/Production,
Warehouse and Industrial Services)

Rocking Horse East Second Addition

300
Feet

5301 & 5353 51st Ave S

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5

NCNO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AGDMU
GC
GO

LC

MR-2
MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

56 ST S
HARVEST

DR S

53 S
T S

51 AVE S

51 S
T S

50 AVE S

55
ST

S

52 AVE S

48 AVE S

52
S

T
S

53 AVE S

VE
TE

R
A

N
S BLV

D
 S

54 S
T S

49 AVE S

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

CUP (Wholesale Sales, Manufacturing/Production,
Warehouse and Industrial Services)

Rocking Horse East Second Addition

300
Feet

5301 & 5353 51st Ave S





Page 1 of 3 
 

Agenda Item # 8 
 

City of Fargo 
Staff Report 

Title: The Basins At 100th Addition Date: 3/1/18 
Location: 4000 98th Avenue South Staff Contact: Donald Kress 
Legal Description: Lot 6, Block 1, Commerce on I-29 Addition 

Owner(s)/Applicant: RI Properties, LLC /Jesse 
Riley Engineer: Moore Engineering, Inc. 

Entitlements 
Requested: 

Minor Subdivision (Replat of Lot 6, Block 1, Commerce on I29 Addition, to the 
City of Fargo, Cass County, North Dakota) 

Status: Planning Commission Public Hearing: March 6, 2018 
 
Existing  Proposed 
Land Use: Warehouse  Land Use: No Change 
Zoning: LI, Limited Industrial  Zoning: No Change 
Uses Allowed: Colleges, community service, 
daycare centers of unlimited size, detention 
facilities, health care facilities, parks and open 
space, religious institutions, safety services, adult 
entertainment centers, offices, off-premise 
advertising, commercial parking, outdoor recreation 
and entertainment, retail sales and service, self– 
storage, vehicle repair, limited vehicle service, 
industrial service, manufacturing and production, 
warehouse and freight movement, wholesale sales, 
aviation, surface transportation. 

 Uses Allowed: No Change 

Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: 85% building 
coverage   

 Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: No Change 

 
Proposal: 
The applicant is seeking approval of a minor subdivision, entitled The Basins At 100th Addition, which 
is a replat of Lot 6, Block 1, Commerce on I29 Addition. The subject property is located at 4000 98th 
Avenue South and encompasses approximately 5.95 acres.  The property is zoned LI: Limited Industrial. 
 
The plat proposes to create four lots for limited industrial development.  All four lots touch public right of 
way.  The lots range from 0.99 to 1.98 acres in area.  There is no minimum required lot area in the LI 
zone. 
 
The lots are accessed by a private cul-de-sac driveway from 98th Avenue South.  This cul-de-sac meets 
the diameter requirement (96 feet) to be consistent with Fire code. No access from this lot is allowed 
onto 100th Avenue South due to the negative access easement that was part of the original Commerce 
on I-29 plat (100th Avenue South is a future arterial).  
 
This project was reviewed by the City’s Planning and Development, Engineering, Public Works, and Fire 
Departments (“staff”), whose comments are included in this report. 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts: 
 North: Across 98th Avenue South; LI, Limited Industrial with vacant land 
 East: LI, Limited Industrial with vacant land use 
 South: Across 100th Avenue South; AG, Agricultural with agricultural uses. 
 West: LI, Limited Industrial with vacant land use 

Area Plans: 
The 2007 Tier 2 South Land Use Plan designates the area of this project as “Industrial.”   

 
Schools and Parks: 
Schools: The subject property is located within Fargo School District, including Bennett Elementary, 
Discovery Middle, and Davies High schools. 
 
Neighborhood:  The subject property is not located within the bounds of a designated neighborhood. 
 
Parks: Rutten Family Park (No address available) is located approximately a little over a half mile 
northeast of the subject property and offers the amenities that are unknown at this time. 
 
Pedestrian / Bicycle: No bike facilities are available at this location. 
 
Staff Analysis: 
Minor Subdivision 
 
 The LDC stipulates that the following criteria is met before a minor plat can be approved: 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
1. Section 20-0907.B.3 of the LDC stipulates that the Planning Commission recommend 

approval or denial of the application, based on whether it complies with the adopted Area 
Plan, the standards of Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land 
Development Code.  Section 20-0907.B.4 of the LDC further stipulates that a Minor 
Subdivision Plat shall not be approved unless it is located in a zoning district that allows 
the proposed development and complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06 and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.  
The adopted area plan for this property, the 2007 Tier 2 South Land Use Plan, designates this 
property for “industrial” land use. The zoning for the project site is LI, Limited Industrial. This 
zoning will accommodate the proposed limited industrial development.  In accordance with 
Section 20-0901.F of the LDC, notices of the proposed plat have been sent out to property 
owners within 300 feet of the subject property. No comments have been received. The project 
has been reviewed by the city’s Planning, Engineering, Public Works, Inspections, and Fire 
Departments and found to meet the standards of Article 20-06 and other applicable requirements 
of the Land Development Code. 
 (Criteria Satisfied) 

 
2. Section 20-907.C.4.f of the LDC stipulates that in taking action on a Final Plat, the Board of 

City Commissioners shall specify the terms for securing installation of public 
improvements to serve the subdivision.   
While this section of the LDC specifically addresses only major subdivision plats, staff believes it 
is important to note that any improvements associated with the project (both existing and 
proposed) are subject to special assessments. Special assessments associated with the costs of 
the public infrastructure improvements are proposed to be spread by the front footage basis and 
storm sewer by the square footage basis as is typical with the City of Fargo assessment 
principles. 
(Criteria Satisfied) 

Staff Recommendation: 
Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend 
approval to the City Commission of the proposed subdivision plat, The Basins At 100th Addition as 
outlined within the staff report, as the proposal complies with the adopted Area Plan, the standards of 
Article 20-06, and all other applicable requirements of the Land Development Code.” 
Planning Commission Recommendation: March 6, 2018 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Map 
2. Location Map 
3. Preliminary Plat 
 



Subject Property

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Plat (Minor)
The Basins on 100th Addition

300
Feet

4000 98th Avenue South

Legend
SR-2
SR-3
SR-4SR-5

NC
NO
P/I

MHP

UMU
GI

AG
DMU
GC
GO

LC

MR-2
MR-3

LIMR-1
City Limits



Subject Property

¯
Fargo Planning Commission

March 6, 2018

Plat (Minor)
The Basins on 100th Addition

300
Feet

4000 98th Avenue South



DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

Scale in Feet

0 60



 












	Agenda
	February 6, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Items Map
	Item 1 MVM Addition
	Item 4 Villas at Shadow Crest Addition
	Item 5 Kirkham's 2nd Addition
	Item 6 Urban Plains Northeast Retail 3rd Addition
	Item 7 Rocking Horse East 2nd Addition
	Item 8 The Basins At 100th Addition



